Mega Financial Holding Company
Minutes of the 2019 Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting

Date and Time: 9:00 a.m., June 21, 2019
Venue: 13/F, Jilin Bldg. of Mega International Commercial Bank, No. 100, Jilin Road, Taipei,
Taiwan, R.O.C.

Attendance: The number of shares in attendance is 10,147,693,420 shares (including 9,120,504,421
shares attended through electronic means). This constitutes 83.18% of the total

12,198,692,252 shares issued, excluding 1,401,131,731 shares retained in China.

Attending directors: (11 directors, exceeding one-half of the number of Directors)

Directors
Chao-Shun Chang, Kuang-Hua Hu, Jui-Min Chen, Cheng-Te Liang, Chun-Lan Yen,

Wen-Ling Hung, Pei-Chun Chen, Chi-Hsu Lin

Independent Directors
Jiun-Wei Lu (Chair of the Audit Committee), Ying-Ko Lin (Chair of the Remuneration

Committee), Chang-Ching Lin

Observers:
Hwa-Inn Kai, Attoney-at-Law, Lotus International Law Office

Chi, Shu-Mei, CPA, PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan
Chairman: Chao-Shun Chang, Chairman of the Board of Directors

Minutes taken down by Chia-Min Hong

1. Announce a quorum is present and call the meeting to order
2. Chairman’s Remarks (omitted)

3. Reports Items
(1) 2018 Business Report (Please refer to Attachment 1 for the 2018 Business Report)
(Noted)
(2) Audit Committee’s Review Report on the 2018 Business Report and Financial Statements
(Please refer to Attachment 2 for the Audit Committee’s Review Report)

(Noted)
(3) The Distribution of Employees' and Directors' Compensation for 2018

(Noted)



Statement Summary:

1. Shareholder (No. 1032266} inquired about the company's deployment and strategy in
financial technology and innovation.

2. Shareholder (No. 837354) proposed to raise the appropriation rate of the new labor pension
system.

3. Shareholder (No. 827304) expressed his opinion about the organizational reform of the Mega
International Commercial Bank.

4, Shareholder (No. 357134) inquired about the annual compensation of the Chairman and risk
management mechanism.

5. Shareholder (No. 743760) made suggestions for wealth management business of Mega

International Commercial Bank.

The above questions and suggestions were responded by the Chairman and President.

4. Matters for Recognition
Proposal 1: 2018 Business Report and Financial Statements. (Proposed by the Board of Directors)
Explanation: The Company’s financial statements were audited by CPA, Chi, Shu-Mei and
Lai, Chung-Hsi of PricewaterhouseCoopers. The Financial Statements described
above and the Business Report of 2018 have been approved by the Board and
examined by the Audit Committee. Please refer to Attachments 1 and 3 for the 2018
Business Report and Financial Statements.

RESOLVED: Approved as proposed, voting results are as follows:

Total votes Approval votes Disapproval votes | Abstention votes | Invalid votes
10, 147, 639, 420 9, 035, 750, 570 575, 035 1,111, 312, 815 1,000
100% 89. 04% 0% 10. 95% 0%

Proposal 2: The Proposal for Distribution of 2018 Earnings. (Proposed by the Board of Directors)
Explanation: The Board of Directors proposed to distribute a dividend of NT$1.7 per share in
cash with aggregate cash dividends of NT$23,119,700,771. If the number of shares
outstanding is changed due to share buyback, transfer, conversion, cancellation of
treasury shares or other circumstances, the Board is authorized to adjust the
dividend per share based on the cash dividend resolved to be distributed and the
number of shares outstanding on the ex-dividend record date. Please refer to

Attachment 4 for the 2018 Profit Distribution Proposal.



RESOLVED: Approved as proposed, voting results are as follows:

Total votes Approval votes Disapproval votes | Abstention votes | Invalid votes
10, 147, 639, 420 9, 070, 244, 659 586, 693 1, 076, 807, 068 1,000
100% 89. 38% 0% 10. 61% 0%

5. Matters for Discussion

Proposal 1: Amendment to the Company's Articles of Incorporation. (Proposed by the Board of

Directors)

Explanation:

1. In response to amendment to the Company Act and our operational needs, it is

proposed to amend the Company’s Articles of Incorporation. The main points of the

amendments are as follows:

(1) The Company’s English name is newly added to respond to the amendment to
Article 392-1 of the Company Act.

(2) The issue of new shares in installments shall be determined by the Board of

Directors is explicitly specified in Article 266 of the Company Act, so the

wording “determined by the Board of Directors” is removed. Additionally, in

compliance with to the paragraph 7 of the Article 267 of the Company Act, it is

newly added that employees entitled to subscribe the new shares reserved for

subscription of employees shall include employees of the Company’s subsidiaries.

(3) The Company’s shares are issued in dematerialized form, so the stipulation about

the printing and authentication of the share certificates is deleted.

(4) To make the dates of the board meeting more flexible, the board meeting is

changed to meet once a month in principle.

2. Please refer to Attachment 5 for the Comparison Table of Amended Articles of

Incorporation.

3. This proposal has been approved by the 11th meeting of the 7th term of Board of

Directors held on April 23, 2019.

Statement Summary:

Shareholder (No. 357134) expressed his opinion on Article 8 of the Company’s Articles of

Incorporation.

The aboved comment was responded by the Chairman.




RESOLVED: Approved as proposed, voting results are as follows:

Total votes Approval votes Disapproval votes | Abstention votes | Invalid votes
10, 147, 639, 420 9,062, 823, 754 753, 208 1,078, 742, 056 | 5, 320, 402
100% 89. 30% 0% 10, 63% 0. 05%

Proposal 2: Amendment to the Company's "Procedures for Acquisition and Disposal of Assets".
(Proposed by the Board of Directors)

Explanation:

1. In response to amendment to the Regulations Governing the Acquisition or Disposal

of Assets by Public Companies promulgated on November 26, 2018 by the Financial

Supervisory Commission, it is proposed to amend the Company’s Procedures for

Acquisition or Disposal of Assets. The main points of the amendments are as follows:

(1) In accordance with IFRS 16, the scope of “right-of-use assets” is expanded in the

related articles.

(2) In accordance with IFRS 9, the scope of “derivatives™ is amended.

(3) The scope of “securities exchange” and “over-the-counter venue” is added.

(4) The passive qualifications of external experts are clearly defined.

(5) The requirements on the assessment and approval process for acquisition or

disposal of business-use equipment and right-of-use assets thereof or real estate

right-of-use assets between the Company and its directly or indirectly

wholly-owned subsidiary are relaxed.

2. Please refer to Attachment 6 for the Comparison Table of Amended Procedures for

Acquisition or Disposal of Assets.

3. This proposal has been approved by the 10th meeting of the 7th term of Board of

Directors held on March 26, 2019.

RESOLVED: Approved as proposed, voting results are as follows:

Total votes Approval votes Disapproval votes | Abstention votes | Invalid votes
10, 147, 639, 420 9, 060, 830, 199 749, 143 1,078, 739,676 | 7,320, 402
100% 89, 29% 0% 10. 63% 0.07%

Proposal 3: Proposal of Releasing the Prohibition of Directors from Participation in Competitive

Business (Proposed by the Board of Directors)

Explanation:

1. In accordance with Article 209 of the Company Act, a director who does anything for

himself or on behalf of another person that is within the scope of the company’s

4



business, shall explain to the shareholders’ meeting the essential contents of such an
act and secure its approval.

2. Certain directors, including juristic person and its representative, of the Company
participate in the operations, or appoint representative to serve as Director, Managing
Director and President, of another company that is engaged in the same or similar
business as the Company. These Directors have not obtained approval from the
shareholders’ meeting. It is proposed that the shareholders’ meeting release the

following directors from the non-competition restrictions according to Article 209 of

the Company Act.
Position Name of Director Company Concurrent Post
Juristic Ministry of Finance
Person > | Central Reinsurance Corporation Director
R.O.C.
shareholder
Director Chao-Shun Chang | Taipei Financial Center Corp. Director
Director Kuang-Hua Hu Financial Information Service Co., Ltd. Director
. . . M 1 i
Director Ye-Chin Chiou Bank of Taiwan Co., Ltd. Anaging ]?1rector
and President

3. This proposal has been approved by the 11th meeting of the 7th term of Board of
Directors held on April 23, 2019.
RESOLVED: Proposal was approved as proposed, voting results are as follows:

Ij;l;i (c))rf Total votes * Appro(z/a;l) votes Disapp?z;r;ﬂvotes Absten(toi/zy)n votes Inva]z':iJ \)/otes
Ministry of 7,033,071,481 | 1,163,829 | 1,963,039, 825 |7, 320, 402
Finaneo | & 004,595,537 | 7 00 o (0. 01%) (21.80%) | (0.08%)
Chao-Shun 7,032,208, 861 | 1,320,205 | 1,963, 403,592 | 7, 375, 166
Chang | & 0043008241 g0 gony (0. 01%) (21.80%) | (0.08%)
KongeHua || 7,032,456,469 | 1,362,808 | 1,963, 401,503 | 7,375, 166
He | 0045%, (78. 09%) (0. 01%) (21.80%) | (0.08%)
Ye-Chin 7,840,562, 731 | 1,348,552 | 1,963, 401,592 | 7, 375, 166
Chiow | 812688, 0411 7g goey (0. 01%) (20.00%) | 0.07%)

* Shareholders having conflicts of interest recuse themselves from voting.




6. Special Motions

Statement Summary:
1. Shareholder (No. 743760) made suggestions for wealth management business of Mega
Internationai Commercial Bank.

2. Shareholder (No. 880369) expressed his opinion on the Company’s investment business.

After responding to each suggestion and comment, and seeing no other provisional motions, the

Chairman announced that the meeting be adjourned.

7. Meeting adjournment ( at 10:56 AM )

1. According to article 183 paragraph 4 of Company Act, this meeting minutes record a
summary of the essential points of the proceedings and the results of the meeting. The
meeting’ content, procedures and shareholders' speech were based on the audio recording.

2. The proportions of approval votes, disapproval votes, abstention votes, and invalid votes to

total votes were rounded down to the second decimal place, and may not total 100%.

Attachments

Attachment 1. 2018 Business Report

Attachment 2. Audit Committee’s Review Report

Attachment 3. 2018 Financial Statements

Attachment 4. 2018 Profit Distribution Proposal

Attachment 5. The Comparison Table of Amended Articles of Incorporation

Attachment 6. The Comparison Table of Amended Articles of Procedures for Acquisition and

Disposal of Assets”



Attachment 1
Mega Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
2018 Business Report

After two years of economic expansion, there are increasing signs pointing to a global
economic slowdown in 2019. In view of the global economy and financial situation, modest
inflation, and increasing uncertainty over business prospects, the Fed on January 30, 2019
has shifted towards a more dovish bias and implied to stop interest hike. It also lowered
both the economic growth and inflation forecasts for 2019, and raised the unemployment
rate forecast on March 21, 2019. The balance sheet normalization program is announced to
be completed at the end of this September. Major economies around the world also cut their
2019 economic growth forecasts in succession and adopted monetary policy to prop up the
declining economy. Since the beginning of 2019, the leading international economic
organizations including World Bank, IMF, IHS Markit all cut their global economic growth
forecasts. As the global trade tensions continue, the downside risks for the global economy
are intensifying.

The economic differentiation is seen in the three major economies. The US economy
continuously performs well with strong employment and wage growth. The Eurozone
demonstrates poor prospects due to the lower-than-expected performance of the top three
economies in the EU. Due to the impact of the US-China trade dispute, China’s economic
outlook is clouded by decreasing domestic and external demands. Looking ahead to 2019,
the trade dispute appears to be mitigating, but global economy is slowing down due to the
weak global trades, the uncertainty of Brexit, increasing financial risks of emerging markets,
constant conflicts between India and Pakistan, and resurgent geopolitical risks after the
breakdown of the meeting between Trump and Kim Jong Un.

For domestic economy, the economic growth rate in Q2 2018 rose to 3.29% from
3.15% in Q1 2018, but went down quarterly. In Q3, the economic growth rate dropped to
2.38% due to the intensified US-China trade dispute and global funds movement resulting
from the US interest hike. In Q4, the economic growth further decreased to 1.78%, with
slowdown 1n export growth, lower-than-expected growth in investment and private
consumption, impacted by the slowdown in global economic growth, lower-than-expected
sales of smart phone and a higher base-year level. The annual economic growth rate in 2018
reached 2.63%. In February 2019, Directorate-General of Budget, Accounting, and Statistics,
Executive Yuan lowered the forecast for 2019 economic growth rate by 0.14% to 2.27% due
mainly to the escalating uncertainties about global economic growth, affecting Taiwan’s
domestic and external demands. In December 2018, both Taiwan’s domestic leading
indicator and coincident indicator continuously dropped, changing the monitoring indicator
signal to a blue light indicating a weakening expansion. However, the stable employment
market and active wage rise by businesses are conducive to the growth of domestic demands,
Most institutions predicted Taiwan’s economic growth rate in 2019 lies between



2.1% and 2.6%.

After the huge penalty imposed by the US regulators, the Company in 2018 still
performed well and created a highest profit records over the last three years despite the
impact of various negative factors of international economic finance. The consolidated net
income after tax reached NT$28,093 million in 2018, an increase of NT$2,364 million or
9.19% from NT$25,729 million in 2017. The EPS was NT$2.07, reaching the new high
over the last three years. The operation results of the Company in 2018 are shown below.

I. Operation Guidelines

(1) Cultivating customer relationships and creating group synergy

(2) Expanding business momentum and maximizing shareholder value

(3) Building a culture of risk management and enhancing risk management

(4) Strengthening the information security management and digital processing
capability

(5) Reinforcing corporate governance and fulfilling corporate social responsibility

(6) Promoting relationships with institutional investors and increasing information
Transparency

(7) Fortifying anti-money laundering operation and increasing legal compliance awareness

II. Implementation Overview

(1) Continue to enhance the subsidiary's business
The subsidiaries of the Company had continued to enhance their business operations
in 2018 based on the existing foundation. In terms of corporate finance business,
Mega International Commercial Bank’s syndicated loan business had a market share
of 12.68% in 2018, ranked first in the syndicated loan market in Taiwan. By the end
of 2018, its credit business captured the third position among local banks, with a
market share of 7.01%. The loan business captured the fourth position among local
banks, with a market share of 6.58%. The corporate loan business had a market
share of 6.81%, ranking on the third place. The SME loan business had a market
share of 7.32%, ranking on the fifth place among the local banks. In terms of
consumer finance and wealth management business, after making every effort to
expand the business and injection of the second profit generating engine, the Bank
had a consumer loan outstanding of NT$429.4 billion by the end of 2018, increasing
by 5.27% from the NT$407.9 billion in 2017. The Group’s total wealth
management profit in 2018 reached NT$3.4 billion, increasing by 12.91% compared
to 2017. The CP2 issued amounts of Mega Bills Finance had a market share of
27.08% in 2018. Its bills trading and bond trading in the secondary market had a
market share of 30.37% and 29.70%, respectively, and the bills guarantee business
had a market share of 30.11%, all ranking on the first place in the market. Mega
Securities’ securities brokerage market share grew to 3.22% in 2018, ranking on the



eighth place in the market. Chung Kuo Insurance Company’s aviation insurance
business had a market share of 14.21%, ranking on the second place in market. The
marine insurance business had a market share of 8.37% in 2018, ranking in the fifth
place in the market.

(2) Six operation goals

To ensure maintaining good profitability and sustainable growth, the Chairman of

the Company at the beginning of 2019 Chinese lunar New Year declared that the

Company will strive for constant profit growth through four dimensions including

structure adjustment, interest rate spread improvement, fee income enhancement

and financial operations. In addition, the Company also reinforces risk

management and legal compliance to lower operating risk. The concrete action

plans are as follows:

a, Structure adjustment
Fore product structure, the bank subsidiary, Mega International Commercial
Bank (the Bank), will further adjust the structure of corporate finance and
consumer finance, while the insurance subsidiary, Chung Kuo Insurance
Company, will adjust its insurance product structure. As far as the channel
structure, the Bank will divide up its branches by specialty based on big data
analysis. In terms of region structure, the Bank will promote the business of
branches in the US and countries included in the government’s New Southbound
Policy. Besides, the Bank will also expand its presence overseas. For example,
the two branches of the Bank’s subsidiary in Canada, which have been
restructured into the branches of the Bank in 2018, will actively transform to
wholesale banking from retail banking in 2019, The branches in Paris and
Amsterdam will explore business opportunity arising from Brexit event in
mainland Europe.

b. Improvement of interest rate spread
To improve the interest rate spread, the Bank will expand foreign currency loan
business and moderately raise the pricing of assets, in addition to increasing the
demand deposit ratio. The bills finance subsidiary, Mega Bills Finance Company,
will expand its funding source in the secondary market to lower its funding cost
and boost interest spread.

¢. Enhancement of fee income
In addition to the fee income from brokerage, underwriting, fund management,
the Group will expand fee income of wealth management business, credit card
business and syndicated loan to boost fee income.

d. Expansion of financial operations and investment
The Bank will be actively engaged in foreign currency bond trading and SWAP
transaction, while Mega Bills Finance will maintain its leading position in the
bills and bond market. The Mega Securities Company will optimize the



performance of securities proprietary trading and activate the assets allocation to
improve investment performance.

. Reinforcement of risk management
The Group will continue to shape a culture of risk management by improving
the risk management capability and embedding risk awareness in daily operation
to prevent possible risk or loss.
Enhancement of regulatory compliance
Regulatory compliance, anti-money laundering and internal control are three
fields, to which the Group attaches more importance. To align with international
best practice, the Company and its subsidiaries will continuously improve its

system and operation in these regards.

III. Implementation of Business Plans

According to the Financial Holding Company Act, the business scope of a Financial
Holding Company shall be limited to investment in, and management of, its investee
enterprises. As of the end of 2018, the subsidiary companies, in which the Company has
direct controlling interest, remains the same as those of 2017. The subsidiary companies
are Mega International Commercial Bank Co., Ltd., (Mega Bank) Mega Securities Co.,
Ltd., Mega Bills Finance Co., Ltd., Chung Kuo Insurance Co., Ltd., Mega International
Investment Trust Co., Ltd.,, Mega Asset Management Co., Ltd.,, Mega Life Insurance
Agency Co., Ltd. and Mega Venture Capital Co., Ltd. The operation results of our

subsidiary companies are summarized as follows:

(1) Mega International Commercial Bank

Units: NT$ million, except foreign exchange business in US$ million

Year Change
2018 2017
Item (%)

Deposits (including due to Chunghwa Post Co., Ltd.) 2,354,393 2,261,201 4.12
Loans, Import/export bills negotiated 1,824,721 1,701,601 7.24
Corporate financing 1,405,758 1,309,372 7.36
Consumers financing (excluding credit card revolving

418,963 392,229 6.82
loans)
Foreign exchange business undertaken 893,678 845,753 5.67
Securities purchased 529,031 502,291 5.32
Long-term equity investments 19,411 20,497 (5.30)
Credit card revolving loans 1,140 1,131 0.08

Note: 1. All figures above are average monthly balance, except foreign exchange business.
2. The non-performing loans outstanding at the end of 2018 amounted to NT$2,670
million, representing a non-performing loan ratio of 0.14%, while the bad debt coverage

ratio reached 1,121.78%.




(2) Mega Securities Company

Item 2018 2017 Change (%)
3.22% 3.06%
. Market share of brokerage ’ ’ g.16
Securities (rank 8) (rank 9)
brokerage . 537% 4.86%
Market share of margin loan 0.51
(rank 6) (rank 8)
Equity Number of issues lead managed by 8 4 100.00
underwriting | MSC (rank 7) (rank 9) '
Number of issues lead managed by 1 2 (50.00)
Bond MSC (rank 8) (rank 6) '
underwriting | Amount of issues lead managed by 6.0 2.6 130.77
MSC (NTS billion) (rank 7) (rank 11) '
N Number of ts issued 1,238 1,434 (13.67
umber of warrants issue .
W (rank 12) (rank 9) )
financial -
Amount of warrants issued (NT$ 104 11.6
products . (10.34)
billion) (rank 13) (rank 10)

Note: It is the ranking of 18 local securities firms among the top 25 securities brokers in 2018.

(3) Mega Bills Finance Company

Units: NT$ million

Item 2018 2017 Change (%)

Underwriting and purchasing of bills 2,806,666 2,632,704 6.61
Underwriting amount of commercial paper issued

) 2,369,796 2,237,849 5.90
for funding purpose {CP2)
Trading volume of bills 8,723,464 8,661,278 0.72
Trading volume of bonds 4,911,287 5,116,324 (4.01)
Average outstanding balance of guaranteed issues

) 161,271 152,652 5.65

of commercial paper
Overdue credit amounts 0 0 -
Percentage of overdue credits (%) 0 0 -

Note: CP2 stands for commercial paper issued for funding purpose without underlying transaction.

(4) Chung Kuo Insurance Company

Unit: NT$ million

Item 2018 2017 Change (%)
Direct written premiums 6,911 6,498 6.35
Inward reinsurance premiums 655 688 (4.47)

Total 7,566 7,186 5.29




(5) Mega International Investment Trust Company
Unit: NT$ million

Item 2018 2017 Change (%)
Public funds under management 79,274 88,766 (10.69)
Private placement funds under
16,142 18,380 (12.18)
management
Discretionary account 902 1,190 (24.20)
Total 96,318 108,337 (11.09)

Note: The AUM decreased as a result of redemption of the Diamond Money Market Fund and
private placement funds by investors as well as the reduction in amount of
discretionary account entrusted by customers.

(6) Mega Asset Management Company
Unit: NT$ million

Item 2018 2017 Change (%)
Gain from disposal of NPL
12 106 (88.68)
purchased and the related collateral
Interest income 3 4 (25.00)
Service income 386 370 4.32
Total 402 481 (16.63)

Note : 1. The company was distributed proceeds of about NT$80 million from the auction of
non-performing loans by the court in 2017, so the revenue decreased in 2018.
2. The interest income reduced in 2018 due to the decline in beneficial rights of real estate

development trust in 2017.

(7) Mega Venture Capital Company
Unit: NT$ million

Item 2018 2017 Change (%)
Drawdown of long term equity investment 234 399 (41.35)
Original cost of long term equity investment 700 997 (29.79)

Note: The significant decline is due mainly to the adjustment of investment portfolio and disposal
of investment with poor prospects.

(8) Mega Life Insurance Agency Company
Unit: NT$ million

Item 2018 2017 Change (%)
5.28

Commission income 1,415 1,344




IV. Implementation of Budget

(1) The Company’s 2018 budget and its implementation are as follows:
Unit: NT$ million, except EPS in NT$

Item Final accounting | Budget figure, | Implemented
figure, 2018 2018 {%)
Revenues 28,169,482 26,892,777 104.75
Expenses and losses 446,454 487,489 91.58
Net income before tax from continuing
. 27,723,028 26,405,288 104.99
operations
Net income 28,109,164 26,277,288 106.97
Earnings per share 2.07 1.93 107.25

(2) The Company’s Subsidiaries’ 2017 budget and its implementation are as follows:
Unit: NT$ million

Net income Net income
.o Implemented
Name of subsidiary before tax - | before tax - %)
actual budget

Mega International Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. 26,636,996 26,243,613 101.50
Mega Securities Co., Ltd. 358,613 711,464 50.40
Mega Bills Finance Co., Ltd. 3,062,597 3,033,225 100.97
Chung Kuo Insurance Co., Ltd. 469,352 487,500 96.28
Mega Asset Management Co., Ltd. 231,687 230,000 100.73
Mega Life Insurance Agency Co., Ltd. 403,200 348,225 115.79
Mega Venture Capital Co., Ltd. (62,917) 34,257 (183.66)
Mega International Investment Trust Co., Ltd. 101,653 95,661 106.26

Mega Securities Company only achieved 50.40% of its budgeted net income before tax due
mainly to poor performance in securities proprietary trading.

Chung Kuo Insurance Company posted a budget achieving rate of 96.28% largely because
of the increase in net claims of auto insurance and fire insurance as well as overall operating

expense compared to 2017, leading to the decrease in underwriting profit.

Mega Venture Capital Company posted a net loss, due mainly to loss from sale of stocks
with poor prospects. Besides, the loss was also attributed to the fact that the recognition of equity
valuation after introduction of IFRS 9 in 2018, is reclassified in the accounting item of “gain on

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss™.



V. Financial Results and Profitability Analysis

The Company and its subsidiaries’ consolidated net profit before tax in 2018
amounts to NT$31,079,960 thousand, an increase of NT$1,799,233 thousand or 6.14%
compared to 2017. The increase is due mainly to the increase in net interest income for
NT$2,216,167 thousand. To conform to the requirements of IFRS 9 introduced in 2018, the
setup of accounting item “realized gain (loss) on financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income” caused the increase of revenue in 2018, while the removal of
accounting item “realized gain (loss) on available-for-sale financial assets” resulted in the
decrease of revenue in 2018. Besides, the revenues other than interest in 2018 decreased by
NT$267,148 thousand compared to 2017 due largely to the increase in net service fee
revenue and commissions, foreign exchange gain and other income, offset by the decline in
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. The bad debts expense
and guarantee liability provisions decreased by NT$2,256,534 thousand, while the
operating expenses increased by NT$2,406,320 thousand. The consolidated net profit after
tax of the Company and its subsidiaries reached NT$ 28,093,445 thousand, an increase of
NT$2,364,350 thousand or 9.19%. Its return on assets was 0.79%, and the return on equity
reached 9.04%. A breakdown of the financial results of the Company and its subsidiaries in
2018 are shown in the table below:

Unit: NT$ million, except EPS in NT$

Net Income | Net Income | Earnings Returnon | Return on
Company
Before Tax | After Tax | Per Share | Assets (%) | Equity (%)
Mega FHC & Its Subsidiaries 31,079.96 | 28,093.45 2.07 0.79 9.04
Mega FHC (Unconsolidated) 27,723.03 | 28,109.16 2.07 8.11 9.05
Mega International Commercial
26,637.00 | 24,172.21 2.83 0.76 8.73
Bank Co., Ltd.
Mega Securities Co., Ltd. 358.61 315.77 0.27 0.53 2.04
Mega Bills Finance Co., Ltd. 3,062.60 | 2,558.08 1.95 0.94 7.11
Chung Kuo Insurance Co., Ltd. 469.35 351.91 1.17 2.15 5.35
Mega Asset Management Co.,
231.69 201.91 1.01 1.63 7.33
Ltd.
Mega Life Insurance Agency
403.20 322.56 161.28 59.05 78.16
Co., Ltd.
Mega Venture Capital Co., Ltd. (62.92) (63.22) (0.63) (8.42) (8.49)
Mega International Investment
101.65 54.72 1.04 5.79 6.58
Trust Co., Ltd.

Note: Return on assets = Net income after tax / Average assets; Return on equity = Net income

after tax / Average equity




VI. Research and Development
The Company and its subsidiaries’ research and development progress in 2018 are

summarized as follows:

(1) In 2018, the Company obtained patents for market risk evaluation system, and
assessed the feasibility of mergers with or acquisitions of domestic and international
institutions. To conform to IFRS 9, it revised the financial risk reporting system
established under IFRS 7. Improvement in classification of credit rating for
enterprises group is made, and the management system for high-risk country’s
financial product is completed. Optimization of the Group’s equity valuation system,
consolidated financial statement system, and financial performance management
system were performed. To prepare for the introduction of IFRS 16 in 2019, the
Company also built a leasing measurement and reporting system.

(2) Mega International Commercial Bank continuously promotes business by
developing new financial products or marketing program to satisfy client needs.
New financial products developed in 2018 include: In credit services, “SME
Preferential Loan Program for Factory Building,” “Reverse Mortgage Loan Part II
(integrated with insurance and trust program), “3-Year Mid-term Revolving Secured
Loan (mid-term expert wealth management financing)” and “Function
Enhancement for Consumer Financing Online Services”; in wealth management
businesses, insurance products with market differentiation exclusively sold by the
Bank; for credit card business, new co-branded cards targeting at young population
with market competitiveness, marketing through cooperation with different sectors
and social media. To enhance digital finance applications, “Big Data Management
Platform” was built in 2018 to strengthen big data infrastructure and analytical
application. Taiwan Pay QR Code, the common payment standard, was introduced.
Functions of “Mega Pay” on mobile banking App were enhanced. LINE official
account “Business Connect” service was launched to provide personalized services,
foreign exchange services, and credit card services, etc. Service function of digital
deposit account was optimized, and opening of foreign currency digital deposit
account is now available online. A “Blockchain Confirmation System” connecting
to “Financial Blockchain Confirmation™ services of the Financial Information
Service Company is built to automatically produce account’s reply of CPA auditing
information. Additionally, the Bank continued to be devoted to digital finance R&D
and applied for various financial services and patents. As of December 31, 2018, it
obtained 102 utility model patents and 10 invention patents approval from the
Ministry of Economic Affairs, and 4 utility model patents and 50 invention patents
applications are under review.



(3) Mega Securities Company evaluated new businesses or adjusted existing products
in response to the opening of new business or regulatory amendments by the
competent authority. To promote digitalization and e-commerce, it continued to
optimize and build new 3-in-1 version of e-platform. Its digital optimization
achievement are as follows: support to fingerprint identification on. Android phone,
introduction of Hong Kong real-time stock price quotation services, Mega Winner
Platform, online of XQ-Trade Platform Service, introduction of foreign futures
trading services, infroduction of after-market futures trading, introduction of
securities borrowing for natural person and LINE notification services, introduction
of financijal e-news services etc. The matching services for securities borrowing by
natural person is continuously promoted.

(4) Mega Bills Finance Company studied the feasibility of undertaking RP transaction
of US dollar bonds with life insurance companies. It continued improving the
existing self-assessment system for operational risk and preparing for Basel III
system framework and introduction practice. Execution and risk monitoring on
anti-money laundering and combating financing of terrorism (AML/CFT) are
enhanced. It sought approval from the competent authority to relax derivatives
transaction scope of bills finance companies. In addition, it promoted
dematerialization of short-term bills in the primary and secondary market and
established e-learning system.

(5) Chung Kuo Insurance Company built a market information database and developed
insurance products with marketability, competitiveness and niche. A total of 225
new insurance products were developed in 2018, including 1 products filed with the
competent authority on a “prior approval” basis, 165 products on a “file for
recordation” basis and 59 products on a “simple file for recordation” basis.

(6) Mega International Investment Trust Company developed multiple currencies
products to increase customer base of foreign currency investment. Mega China
A-shares Equity Fund’s investment quota in foreign currency was approved to
increase by the regulator.

Chairman: Chao-Shun Chang  President: Kuang-Hua Hu  Chief-Accountant: Jui-Ying Tsai



Attachment 2
Mega Financial Holding Co., Ltd.

Audit Committee’s Review Report

The Board of Directors has prepared and delivered this Company’s 2018
Consolidated Financial Statements, audited by CPA Chi, Shu-Mei and Laij,
Chung-Hsi of PricewatethouseCoopers Taiwan (PWC), Business Report and
earning distribution proposal. The above statements and reports have been examined
by the Audit Committee and considered in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. We hereby submit this report in accordance with Article 14-4 of the

Securities and Exchange Act and Article 219 of the Company Act for your

ratification.
To: 2019 General Shareholders’ Meeting
Mega Financial Holding Co., Ltd.

Chairman of the Audit Committee; Jiun-Wei Lu

Date : May 14, 2019



Attachment 3

MEGA FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND

2017

For the convenience of readers and for informaticn purpose only, the auditors’ report and the accompanying
financial statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese version prepared and used in
the Republic of China. In the event of any discrepancy between the English version and the original Chinese
version or any differences in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chinese-language auditors’ report and

financial statements shall prevail.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS TRANSLATED FROM CHINESE

: PWCR18000366
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Mega Financial Holding Co., Ltd.”

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Mega Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
and subsidiaries (collectively the “Mega Group™) as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows for the years
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a surhmary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Mega Group as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Financial Holding
Companies”, “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Public Banks”,
“Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Public Held Bills Finance Companies”,
“Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Firms”, “Regulations
Goveming the Preparation of Financial Reports by Futures Commission Merchants”, “Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Enterprises Engaging in Insurance” and the
International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations

and SIC Interpretations as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission. |

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audits in accordance with the “Rules Governing the Audit of Financial Statements of

Financial Institutions by Certified Public Accountants™ and generally accepted auditing standards in the
Republic of China (ROC GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Mega Group in accordance with the Code of Professional Ethics for Certified
Public Accountants in the Republic of China (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

HIBHE S AT PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan

11012 B T {5 S 10 B R RS — B 933 B a7 4

27F, No. 333, Sec. 1, Keelung Rd., Xinyi Dist., Taipei 11012, Taiwan
T: +886 (2) 2720 6666, F:+ 886 (2) 2729 6686, www.pwe.tw



Key audzr matters
Key audit matters are those matters that in our professional Judoemen’c were of most significance in our

audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole and, in forming our opinion

thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Mega Group’s key audu matters for the year ended December 31, 2018 are addressed as follows:

Recogmtlon and measurement of expected credlt losses on loans discounted

Description _
The recognition and measurement of expected credit losses on loans discounted complies with the

regulations under IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and relevant regulations issued by the competent
authority. For the accounting policy of recognition and measurement of expected credit losses on loans
discounted, please refer to Note 4(9); for_ critical accoﬁming Judgements, estimaies, andkassumption
uncertainty of the recognition and measurement of expected credit losses on loans discounted, please'
refer to Note-5(2) For information on gross loans discourited and allowance for bad debts, which
amounted to $1,894,706,350 thousand and $30,259,247 thousand, respectively, as at December 31, 201 8,
please refer to Note 6(7) for disclosures of re]ated cred:t risks, please refer to Note 8(3). '

‘ The subsidiary Mega International Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. '(“MTBC”) assesses the impairmeﬁt ofits
loans discounted based on the expected credit loss model. At each financial repofcmg, date, financial
instruments are ‘categorized into three stages based on the degree of change in its credit risk since mmal '
recognition. onwsmn for impairment loss is measured either | using 12-month expected credit losses (ie.
stage 1, 1, there has been no significant i mcrease in credit risk since initial recognition) or lifetime expected
credit losses (Le. stage 2, there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition; or
stage 3, the credit has impaired). The measurement of expected credit losses is based on a complex model,
which includes various parameters and assumptions and reflécts reasoriable and supportable information
about past events, cilrfeht conditions and forecasts of future CCOh01nic conditions. Torexéinp.le' the
probability of defdult -and loss given ‘default are “estimated ‘usiig gloupmg and “historical data and

subsequently cahbrated accordmg to forward- 1ookmg mformatlon _

The aforementioned Iecogmtlon and measurement of expected credlt Josses on loans dlscounted use a

complex model, which mvolves various assumptions, estimates, and Judgements as well as pred1ct1ons'
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and assessments of future economic conditions and credit behaviour of debtors. The amounts, recognised
in a manner consistent with regulations and interpretations, are directly subject to the measurement
results. Thus, we have mcluded recognition and measurement of expected credit losses on loans

discounted as one of the key audit matters in our audi.

How our audit addressed the matter

We performed the following audit procedures on the key audit matter mentioned above:

1. Obtained an understanding and assessed the related written policies and internal control system of
loans discounted, the expected credit loss impairment model and methodology (including various
parameters and assumptions, reasonableness of the measurement criteria for the three stages of

credit risk, and the relevancy of future economic condition criteria in forward-looking information),
and the approval process,

Sampled and tested the implementation effectiveness of internal controls related to the recognition
and measurement of expected credit losses, including management of collateral and its value
assessment, controls for changes in parameters, and approval for provisioning of expected credit

o

losses. .
3. Sampled and tested the consistency of measurement criteria for the samples in the three stages of

expected credit loss with the judgement results of the system.
4.  Sampled and tested probability of default, loss given default, exposure at default, and the discount
rate. ‘
(1) Sampled and tested assumptions for the parameters of the expected credit loss model, including
the reasonableness of historical data on probability of default, loss given default, and exposure

at default,
(2) Sampled and tested whether the calculation method of the discount rate of loss given default is

in accordance with existing policy.
5. Sampled and tested forward-looking information. _
(1) Sampled and tested the 1‘eliabi]_ity of data on historical economic conditions (economic growth

rate, annual inflation rate, etc.) adopted by management to measure expected credit losses under

IFRS 9.
(2) Assessed the reasonableness of the forward-looking scenarios and their respective weights

adopted by the management.
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6. Assessed cases in stage 3 (credit impaired) with material amounts that were previously assessed
-individually.

_ Assessed the reasonableness and calculation accuracy of the various assumed parameter values

(including debtor due period, financial and operational conditions, guarantees by external parties and

historical data) adopted in the estimation of future cash flows.

F air value measurement of unlisted stocks without an active market

Descrtptlot
For the accounting pohcy for un]tsted stocks without an active market (mcluded financial assets at fau

value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through other compr ehensive income),
please refer to Note 4(7) ; for critical accounting judgements, estilttates; and assumption uncertaihty of
unlisted stocks without an active market, please refer to Note 5(1); for details on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, please
refer to Notes 6(3)} and (4). ‘The fair values of un]tsted stocks without an actlve market were classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss amounting to 35,793, 751 thousand and financial

assefs at fair value through other comprehensive income amounting to $14, 646 816 thousand as at

December _:1, 2018,

The fair value of unhsted stocks s determmed by valuation methods since these financial instruments
have no quoted prices from active market. Management uses the market approach and net asset approach
to measure the fair value. The market approach i is based on the fair value of compar able listed companies
in 51m11ar mdustr]es or recently publtshed price-to- book ratios of mdustrles in which the valuatton target

operates, and incorporates dtscountmg according to market liquidity or spec:ﬁed risk.

The aforementioned fair value measurement involves vartous assumpttons and mgnn" icant inputs that are
not observable. This leads to esttmates that are highly uncertam and rely on the sub]eotWe Judgement of
management Any changes to the Judoements and esttmates wﬂl affect the final measurement results,
and in turn affect the financial condition of the Mega Group Thus we have included the fair value
measurement of unlisted stock W;thout active market as one of the key audit matters in our audit..
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How our audit addressed the matter

We performed the following audit procedures on the key audit matter mentioned above:

1. Obtained an understanding and assessed the related written policies, infemal control system, fair
value measurement models, and approval process of the fair value measurement of stocks of

unlisted companies.
Ascertained whether the measurement used by the management is commonly utilized by the

b

industry. ‘
Assessed the reasonableness of similar and comparable companies used by management. -

4. Examined inputs and calculation formulas used in valuation methods and agreed such data to their

[¥h3

supporting documents.

Claims reserve and ceded claims reserve

Description
For the accounting policy for claims reserve (including those prior to and after reinsurance), please refer

“to Note 4(18)4.; for critical accounting judgements, estimates, and assumption uncertainty of claims
reserve (including ceded reserves), please refer. to Note 5(4); for details on claims reserve (and ceded

reserves), please refer to Note 6(24).

The subsidiary, Chung Kuoe Insurance Co., Ltd (CKI)’s claims reserve (including ceded reserve) uses
the Joss development triangle to estimate the reasonable amount of ultimate claims according to the
Actuarial Department’s historical claim experience and expenses by insurance type. As of December 31,
2018, subsidiary CKl's claims reserve and ceded claims reserve was $3,416,365 thousand and
$1,670,738 thousand, respectively. Because the calculation method and assumptions for claims reserve
“involve the professional judgment of management, and because claims reserve is material to the financial
statements, we have thus included the estimation of claims reserve and ceded claims reserve as a key

audit matter in our audit.

How our andit addressed the matter
The procedures that we have conducted in response to specific aspects of the above-mentioned key audit

matter are summarized as follows:
1. Understood and assessed subsidiary CKI's policies, internal controls and processing procedures

related to claims reserve (including ceded reserve), and tested the effectiveness of controls related



to the calculation of claims reserve on sample basis.
2. Sampled and inspected the consistency of financial values used in calculating claims reserve- -
(including those prior to and after reinsurance) with the recorded amounts in the books in order to
confirm the accuracy and completeness: L |
3. Used the work of actuarial expert to assists us in assessing the reasonableness of the claims reserve
(including those prior to and after reinsurance). This included the following procedures:
(1) Sampled and inspected the reasonableness of method used in the estimation of claims reserve;
(2) Established a range of estimates of incurred but not reported claims reserve. On an sampling .
basis, compared the range of estimates and the acco unt balances of the reserve for any
significant differences in order to confirm the reasonableness of the reserves.

4. Sampled and inspected significant reported but not paid cases to assess the reasonableness of the

estimated amount.

Responsibilities of - management and ﬂzose charged wn‘h governance fo: z‘he-

consolidated financial statements
'Managt,ment is responsible for the preparation and fair representation of the consohdated f111anc1a1

statements in accordance with “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Financial
Holding Companies”, “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Public Banks”,
“Regulations deeming the Preparation of Financial Reports by Publicly Held Bill Finance Companies™,
“Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Firms”; “Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Futures Commission Merchants”, *Regulations
Goveming the Preparation of Financial Reports by Enterprises Engaging in Insurance”, and the
International Financial Reporting Sténdards IntématioﬁalAcéounting Standards, IFRIC Ii]'tErpretations
_and SIC Initerpr etations as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commlssmn and for such internal
control- as management detennmes is- neccssary to -enable the pxepalatlon of consohdated ﬁnanmal
statements that are free from material mlsstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Inpr eparulg fhe consolidated ﬁnanc:lal statements, management is respons1ble for assessing the Mega.
Group’s ab111ty to continue as a go ing concern, disclosing, as apphcable matters related to going concemn _
and using the going concern ‘basis of accountmg unless management elther intends to liquidate Mega
Group or to céase ope;-atidns‘, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. |

Thosé charged with governance, inclu'ding the audit committée, are responsible for overseeing Mega
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Financial Holding Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements

as a whole are free fiom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ROC GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of'these consolidated financial statements. '

As part of an audit in accordance with ROC GAAS, we exercise professional judgement and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive o those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or. the
override of internal control. '

2. Obtain an understanding of inlernal control relevant to the audit.in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Mega Group’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4.  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Mega Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conchude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Mega Group to cease to continue as a going concern. |

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the



underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial infcrmation of the entities or
business activities within the Mega Group to express an opinion on the consolidated ﬁﬂanciagl.'
“statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the gloup audit.

- We remain solely respons1b]e for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with audit committee regarding, among other mattezs the p]amled ‘

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any mgmﬁcanl defi cmnmes n

internal control that we identify during our audit. :

We also provide those charged with audit committee with a statement that we have complied with

relevant. ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards. ‘ '

From the matters cormumunicated with those charged with audit committee, we determine those matters

that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period

and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare ‘circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 1ep011 because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interést benefits of such communication.

43, Sl M cc-} Py Aﬁ_.—-w
Chl Shu Mei , Lal Chung H51 7
For and on behalf of Pr1cewate1 houseCoopels Talwan |
March 26 2019

The” accompanying consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of
operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted, in countries and jurisdictions other
than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and practices in the Republic of China governing the audit of such
financial statements may differ from those generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China.
Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements and report of independent accountants are not intended for
use by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing standards general]y accepted in the Republic
of China, and their applications in practice. _

As the financial statements are the responsibility of the mdnagement PncewaterhouseCoopcrs cannot accept any habaluy for
the use of, or rellance on, the Enghsh trans]anon or for any errors or misunderstandings that may derive from the translation.




MEGA FINANCIAL HOLDING CO.. LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

(Adjusted) (Adjusted)
December 31. 2018 December 31. 2017 January 1, 2017
Assels Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Assefs
11000 Cash and cash 6(1)
equivalents 129,675,778 4 3 143 .864.749 4 3 98,131,357 3
11560 Due from the Central ~ 6(2) and 11
Bank and eall loans to
banks 514,219,514 14 567,201,934 16 540,011,742 16
12000 Financial assets at fair  6(3). 11, 12
value through profit or  and 16(13)
loss 196,201,030 5 191,581,454 5 186,317,373 &
12100 Available-for-sale 12 and
financial assets, net 16(13) - - 442,557,049 13 354,464,708 11
12150 Financial assets at fair 6(4)and 12
value through other
comprehensive income 421,176,553 12 - - - -
12200 Investments in debt 6{$)and 12
instruments at
amortised cost 272,926,017 8 - - - -
12500 Securities purchased
under resell agreements 2,623,231 - 2,553,228 - 2,855,885 -
13000 Receivables, net 6(6) and
16(13) 92.723,255 3 96,055,863 3 86,825,802 3
13200 Current income tax
assets 272,816 - 757.391 - 528.037 -
13300 Assets classified as 6(8)
held for sale, net 328.350 - - - - -
13500 Loans discounted, net  6(7), 11 and
16(13) 1,864,447,103 53 1,762,160,756 50 1,715,278,766 52
13700 Retnsurance contract G{IH24)
assets, nei 3,854,464 - 3,555,454 R 4,261,668 -
14500 Held-to-maturity 12 and
financial assets, net 16(13) - - 284,687,657 8 280,997,362 8
15000 Equity investments 6(10)
accounted for under the
equity method, net 3,168,973 - 3,184,501 - 3,108,470 -
15500 Other financial assets, 6(11), 12
net and 16(13) 5,112,210 - 15,089,381 - 14,955,209 -
18000 Investment property, 6¢12) and 12
net 1,500,403 - 1,696,863 - 1,711,561 -
18500 Property and 6(13)and 12
equipment, net 21,973,422 1 21,981,154 1 21,787,452 1
19000 Intangible assets, net 518,222 - 382,728 - 270,438 -
19300 Deferred income tax 6(39)
assets 7,552,961 - 6,018,307 - 5,463,227 -
19500 Other assets, net 6(14)and 12 3,785,059 - 3,964,038 - 2,772,011 -
3,542,059,361 100 3§ 3,547,292 ,507 100 % 3,31%,741,968 100

Total Assels

{Continued)



MEGA FINANCIAT HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

(Adjusted} (Adjusted)
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017 Janvary 1, 2017
Liabilities and equity Notes AMOUNT Y AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Liabilities
21000 Due to the Central 6(15) and 11
Bank and financial
institutions 411,643,388 12 404,371,657 12 406,014,997 12
21500 Funds borrowed from  6(16)
the Central Bank and
other banks 53.920,881 2 29,632,568 1 35.601.029 1
22000 Financial liabilities at ~ 6(17)
fair value through profit
or loss 27,357,462 1 9,966,779 - 12,105,231 1
22500 Securities sold under  6(18)
repurchase agreements 252,298,265 7 237,706,429 7 231,191,763 7
22600 Commercial paper 6(19)and 11
payable, net 15,929,662 - 20,165,421 1 11,701 .64% -
23000 Payables 6(20) 66,362,081 2 70,119,748 2 57,212,755
23200 Current income tax
liabilities 9,319,314 - 9,216,815 - 10,329,395 -
23500 Deposits and 6(21)
remittances 2,320,637,263 66 2,386,555,016 67 2,171,287.,924 66
24000 Bonds payable 6(22) 13,300,000 - 31,670,036 1 41,924,088 i
24400 Other loans 6(23) 4,934,529 - 1,325,368 - 5,954,030 -
24600 Provisions for liabilities 6(24) and
16(13) 26,577,832 1 26,182,764 1 25,047,224 1
25500 Other finaneial 6(25)
liabilities 15,325,367 - 12,698,470 - 10,849,706 -
29300 Deferred income tax 6(39)
liabilities 2,526,612 - 2,266,455 - 2,201,659 -
29500 Oiher liabilities 6(26) 7.271,276 - 7,319,019 - 6,203,075 -
Total Liabilities 3,227,803,932 21 3,249,196,945 92 3,027,714,525 91
Equity
Equity attributable to
ovwners of parent
31100  Share capital
311m Common stock 6(27) 135,998,240 4 135,998,240 4 135,998,240 4
31500  Capital surplus 6(27) 68,194,233 2 68,194,233 2 68,194,233 2
Retained earnings
32001 Legal reserve 6(27) 35,255,784 1 32,682,332 1 30,436,714 1
32003 Special reserve 627 2,545,151 - 3,004,318 - 2,545,158 -
32011 Unappropriated 6(28)
retained earnings 64,774,415 2 59,182,128 1 56,976,974 2
Other equity interest 6(29) and
16(13)
32500 Other equity interest 7,474,457 - 1,007,118) - 2,165,966) -
39500  Non-controlling intevests 13,149 - 41,429 - 42,090 -
Total Equity 314,255,429 9 298,095,562 8 292,027,443 9
TOTAL
LIABILITIES AND
EQUITY 3,542,059,361 100 3,547,292,507 100 3,319,741 ,068 100

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




MEGA FINANCIAL HOLDING CO.. LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except earnings per share)

Years ended December 31 Changes
2018 2017 Percentage
Iiems Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT % (%)
41000 Interest income 6(30)and 11§ 68,396,935 111§ 57,094,672 96 20
51000 Less: interest expense 6(30)and 11 ¢ 30,301,244) ( 493 { 21,215,148) ( 36) 43
Interest income, net 38,005,691 62 35,879,524 60 6
Revenues other than interest, net
49800 Service fee revenue and 6(3D)
commissions, net 5,659,224 16 9,527,247 16 1
49810 Insurance revenue, net 1,805,936 3 1,773,954 3 2
49820 Gain on financial assets and 6(32)and 11
liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 6,269,698 10 7,588,210 13 ¢« 17
49825 Gain on investment property 18,121 - 18,462 - 2y
49830 Realized gain on available-for- 16(13)
sale financial assets, net - - 1,918,710 3 1000
49835 Realized gain on financial assets ~ 6(4)(33)
at fair value through other
comprehensive income 1,567,007 3 - - -
49850 Net gain arising from 6(5)
derecognition of financial assets
measured at amortised cost 1,432 - - . -
49870 Foreign exchange gains 2,668,324 4 1,705,046 3 56
49890 Share of profit of associatesand  6(10)
joint ventures accounted for under
equity method 188,574 - 212,015 - ( 11)
49898 Gain on reclassification under the  6(3)(29)
overlay approach 111,585 - - - -
48000 Other revenue other than interest  6(35)
income 1,236,710 2 1,240,223 2 -
55000 Loss on asset impairment 6(34) and
16(13) ( 12,895) - 203,003} - { 94)
Net revenue 61,509,407 100 59,660,388 100 3
58100 Bad debts expense and guarantee  6(9)(11). 8(3)
Hability provisions and 16(13)  ( 1,996,406} ¢ 3} ( 4,336,814) ( DR 54)
58300 Net change in provisions for 6(24)
insurance liabilities 68,884 . 152,758 - 55)
Operating expenses
58501 Employee benefit expenses 6{36) ( 18.,096,204) 29y 16,933,655) ¢ 2% 7
58503 Depreciation and amortization 6(37) ( 845,876) ¢ 1) ( 761.012) ¢ 1 11
58599 Other business and administrative 6(38)
expenses { 9,659,845) ( 16) ¢ 8,500,938) ( 14} 14
61000 Income before income tax 31,079,960 5} | 29,280,727 49 6
61003 Income tax expense 6(39) { 2,986,515} ¢ 5y ( 3,551,632) ¢ 6) ¢{ 16)
69000  Profit for the year 3 28,093,445 46 % 25,720,095 43 9

(Continued)



MEGA FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except earnings per share)

Years ended December 31

Items

2018

2017

Notes AMOUNT

%

AMOUNT

%

Changes
Percentage
€0

69561

69563

69567

69569

69571

69572

69575

69585

69587

69550

69579

69500

69700

69901
69903

69951
69953

70000

Other comprehensive income
(after income tax)
Non-reclassifiable to profit or loss
subsequently

Loss on remeasurement of defined

benefit plan
Share of other comprehensive
income of associates and joint
ventures accounted for using
equity method
Revaluation gains (losses) on
investments in equity instruments
measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Income tax related to components
of other comprehensive income
that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
Potentially reclassifiable to profit
or loss subsequently
Cumulative translation differences
of foreign operations
Unrealized gain on valuation of
available-for-sale financial assets
Share of other comprehensive
income (loss) of associates and
joint ventures accounted for under
equity method
Gains {losses) on valuation of
investments in debt instruments
measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Impairment loss from investments
in debt investments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
Other comprehensive losses on
reclassification under the overlay
approach
Income tax related to components
of other comprehensive income
that will be reclassified to profit
orloss
Total other comprehensive
loss (after incotne tax)
Total comprehensive income
Profit attributable to:

Owners of parent
Non-controlling interests

Comprehensive income (loss)
attributable to:
Owners of parent
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per
share (in dotlars)

(% 844,542) (

({ 2,634)
6(4)(29)

462,883
6(39)

345,487

6(29) and
16(13)
16(13)

1,148,351
6(10)(29) and
16(13)

35,210}
6(4)(29)

1,666,858) (
6(4)29)

( 34,947)
6(3)(29)
111,585)
6(29)(39})

331,559

1) ($

3)

1,822,689 (

309,856

1,890,094) (

3,037,736

15,965

BV

3 (

(3 407,496) (

13

349,226)

$ 27,685,945

45

25,379,869

43

$ 28,109,164
{ 15,719}

46

25,734,515
5,420}

43

§ 28,093,445

46

25,729,005

43

$ 27,701,668
( 15,719)

45

25,380,530
661)

43

§ 27,685,949

45

25,379,869

43

6(40)

2.07

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

{

(

54)

11

161)

100}

321}

2278
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MEGA FINANCIAL HOLDING CO.. LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)
Depreciation
Amortization
Bad debis expense and guarantee liabijity provision
Interest expense
Interest income
Dividend income
Net change in provisions for insurance liabilities
Loss on asset impairment
Loss {gain) on disposal of property and equipment
Gain on disposal of investment property

Share of profit of associates accounted for under equity

method
Reserve of overlay approach
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets

Decrease in due from Central Bank and call [cans to other

banks

Decrease (increase) in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Increase in available-for-sale financial assets

Decrease (increase) in receivables

Increase in assets classified as held for sale

Increase in discounts and loans

Increase in financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Decrease in investments in debt instruments measured at

amortised cost

(Increase) decrease in reinsurance contract assets

Increase in held-to-maturity financial assets

Increase in other financial assets

Decrease (increase) in other assets

Changes in operating liabilities

Increase (decrease) in due to the Centra] Bank and
financial institutions

Inerease (decrease) in financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Increase in bills and bonds purchased under resale
agreements

(Decrease) increase in payables

{Decrease) increase in deposits and remittances

Increase in other financial liabilities

Increase (decrease) in liabilities reserve

Decrease in other liabilities

Cash (outflow) inflow generated from operations

Interest received

Cash dividend received

Imeerest paid

Income tax paid

Net cash flows (used in) from operating activities

(Continued)

Years ended December 31.

2018 2017

31,079,960 29,280,727
767.974 696,276
77,902 64,736
1,996,406 4,336,814
31,079,431 21,525.218
70,322,834 ) ( 59,200,791 )
1,859.861) ( 1,450,735 )
68,884 ) { 152,759 )
12.895 203.003
2,388 ( 1.266 )
254) ( 221 )
188,574 ) ( 212,015 )
111,585 ) -
17,384,939 34,914,999
8,615,222 ( 5,264,081 )
- 85,192,365 )
3,978,979 ( 8,516,076 )
328.350 ) )
104,663,089 ) ¢ 50,940,398 )
18,771,899 ) -
52,215,093 .
299,010 ) 706,214
S 3,690,295 )
1,761,601 ) ¢ 637,457 )
825,877  ( 1,152,259 )
11,096,323 ( 1,643,340 )
17,390,683 ( 2,138,452 )
14,591,836 6,514,666
8,169,400 ) 8,909,720
65,917.753 ) 215,267,092
2,626,897 1,848,764
464,646 ( 542,200 )
358.454) ( 79.220 )
78,614,097 ) 103,445,299
69,585,726 58,218,582
2,026,120 1,614,856
30,023,083 ) { 20,864,314 )
1.594.240 ) { 3.284.750 )

38.619.574 )

139,129,673




MEGA FINANCIAL HOLDING CQ., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Years ended December 31,

2018 2017

CASH FIL.OWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from capital reduciion of investments measured at cost $ - $ 410,894

Acquisition of property and equipment { 748,867 ) ( 912,318

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 38,583 30,150

Acquisition of intangible assets ( 378,793y ( 283,478 )

Acquisition of investment property { 148,235 ) ( 825)

Proceeds from disposal of investment property 1,621 1,209

Net cash flows used in investing activities ( 1,235,691 ) ¢ 754,368 )

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase (decrease) in due to the Central Bank and financial

institutions 20,463,321 ¢ 6,058,061 )

Decrease (increase) in commercial papers payable { 4,231,000) 8,465,000

Repayments of bank notes payable { 12,600,000 y ¢ 10,300,000 )

Repayments of bonds ( 16,700 ) -

Increase (decrease) in other loans 3,609,161 { 4,628,662 )

Increase in guarantee deposits received 316,628 1,192,790

Cash dividends paid ( 18,739,395 ) ( 17,719,905 )

Net cash flows used in financing activities ‘ ( 11,197,985 ) ¢ 29,048,838

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 1,336,024 ¢« 1,790,543 )
Net (decrease)} increase in cash and cash equivalents { 49,717,226 ) 107,535,924
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 536,876,729 429,341,320
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 487,159,503 3 536,877,244
The components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents reported in the balance sheet $ 129,675,778 $ 143,864,749

Due from Central Bank and call loans to other banks qualified as

cash and cash equivalents as defined by IAS 7 354,860,494 390,459,267

Investments in bills and bonds under resale agreements qualified

as cash and cash equivalents as defined by 1AS 7 2,623,231 2,553,228
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 487,159,503 $ 536,877,244

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MEGA FINANCIAT HOLDING CO., LTD.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TATWAN DOLLARS, EXCEPT EARNINGS PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

Revenues
Interest income

Gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value

through profit
Foreign exchange gain
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures

accounted for under equity method
Other revenue except for interest income

Total revenue
Expenses and losses
Interest expense

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through

loss
Foreign exchange loss
Employee benefit expense
Depreciation and amortization
Other business and administrative expenses
Total expenses and losses
Income before income tax
Income tax benefit
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Non-reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently
Loss on remeasureimnent of defined benefit plans

Share of other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures accounted for under the equity

method

Revaluation gains on investments in equity
instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Income tax related to components of other

compreliensive income that will not be reclassified

to profit or loss

Potentially reclassitiable to profit or loss subsequently

Unrealized gain on valuation of available-for
-sale financial assets
Share of other comprehensive income of

associates and joint ventures accounted for under

the equity method

Other comprehensive loss for the year, (after
income tax)

Total comprehensive income (after income tax)

Earnings Per Share (in doilars)
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (in dollars)

For the year ended
December 31, 2018

For the year ended
December 31, 2017

843 § 11,307

140,548 ]

- 5

27,913,508 25,926,293

114,583 176,896

28,169,482 26,114,501

( 61,997) ( 78,968)
- ( 27.260)

( 3) -
( 310,085) ( 288,562)
( 11,874) ( 13,353)
( 62,493) ( 69,638)
( 446,454) ( 477,781
27,723,028 25,636,720

386,136 97,795

28,109,164 25,734,515

( 2,714) ( 5,402)
( 472,247) ( 1.508,349)
435,649 -

507 918

. 352,594

( 368,691) 806,254
( 407,496) ( 353,985)
27,701,668 $ 25,380,530

2.07 $ 1.89
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MEGA FINANCIAL HOLDING CO.. LTD.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit before tax
Income and expenses having no effect on cash flows
Income and expenses
Depreciation
Amortization
Interest expense
Interest revenue
Dividend income
(Gain) loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Share of profit of associates accounted for under equity method
Changes in assets/liabilities relating to operating activities
Changes in assets relating to operating activities:

Decrease in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Decrease (increase) in receivables
Decrease (increase) in other assets
Changes in liabilities relating 1o operating activities:
Increase in payables
(Decrease) increase in provisions for liabilities
Increase in other liabilities
Cash provided by operations
Interest received
Cash dividend received
Interest paid
Income tax paid
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Acquisition of property and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Increase in comumercial papers payable
Decrease in other loans
Decrease in bonds payable
Cash dividends paid
Net cash used in financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

For the year ended
December 31, 2018

For the year ended
December 31, 2017

27723028  § 25.636,720

10,063 11,566

1,811 1,787

61.997 78,968
( 843) ¢( 11,308)
( 110,565) ¢ 171.475)
( 140,548) 27,260
( 27,913,508) ( 25,926,293)
178,159 .

89 ( 389)

2342 ( 4,750)

1,320,166 1.740.414

( 2.929) 104
936 204,764

1,130,498 1.587,368

843 11,308

16,018,131 15,954,237

( 50.611) 34.673)
( 1.104.292) ( 1.972,074)
15,094,569 15.546.166

( 9.509) ( 1.734)
( 4.105) .
( 13.614) ( 1,734)
2,620,000 4,000,000

. 1,600.000)

( 16,700) .
( 18.739.395) 17,719.905)
( 16.136,095) 15.319,905)
( 155.140) 224.527
307,833 83.306

$ 152693 8 307,833




Attachment 4
Mega Financial Holding Co., 1td.

2018 Profit Distribution Proposal

Unit : NT$
Items Amount
Beginning undistributed retained earnings in 2018 36,668,107,370
Add : Retained earnings adjustment for first-time adoption of IFRS 9 755,917,463
Less : Retained earnings due fo re-measurements of defined benefit
(499,055,935)
plans
Less : Loss on disposal of investments in equity instruments measured
(259,718,963)
at fair value through other comprehensive income
Adjusted retained earnings 36,665,249,935
Add : Net profit after income tax of 2018 28,109,164,451
Less : 10% legal reserve (2,810,916,445)
Total distributable earnings 61,963,497,941
Less : Distribution item
Cash dividend to shareholders (NT$1.7 per share) (23,119,700,771)
Unappropriated retained earnings 38,843,797,170

Notel @ The 2018 earnings shall be distributed as a priority.

Note2 : The amount of cash dividends per share shall be calculated and truncated to NT$1.
The sum of all cash dividends less than NT$1 shall be allocated in line with a
progressive decrease in decimal numbers and a progressive increase in

shareholders’ ID number so that the total dividend distribution is fully paid.




Attachment 5

Mega Financial Holding Co., Ltd.

The Comparison Table of Amended Articles of Incorporation

Amended Article Original Article Explanation
ARTICLE 1 ARTICLE 1
The Company is organized The Mega Financial Holding | According to the Article

under the Financial Holding
Company Act and the
Company Act, and its name
shall be Jk'&=Fhre B {5
[E/\ 5] in the Chinese
language, and Mega Financial
Holding Company Limited
(hereinafier referred to as the
"Company") in the English
language to enhance the
economic scale, achieve
synergy of the financial holding
company and promote the
development of the financial

Company Ltd. (hereinafter
referred to as the "Company™)
is hereby organized under the
Financial Holding Company
Act and the Company Act to
enhance the economic scale,
achieve synergy of the
financial holding company
and promote the development
of the financial market.

392-1 of the Company Act,
companies are allowed to
register English names with
the competent authority.
The Company’s English
name is therefore added in
this article.

market.
ARTICLE 5 ARTICILE 5
The Company is a professional | The Company is a To conform to the

investment company. The total
amount of investments made by
the Company may exceed forty
percent of the amount of its
own paid-up capital without
being subject to the
requirement set out in
Paragraph 2, Article 13 of the
Company Act.

professional investment
company. The total amount of
Investments made by the
Company may exceed forty
percent of the amount of its
own paid-up capital without
being subject to the
requirement set out in
Paragraph 1, Article 13 of the

amendment to Article 13
of the Company Act, the
paragraph 1 of the Article
13 of the Company Act
cited in this Article is
revised to paragraph 2

of Article 13.

Company Act.
ARTICLE 6 ARTICLE 6
The total authorized capital of | The total authorized capital of | 1. Company’s shares
the Company is two hundred the Company is two hundred issued in instalments

twenty billion New Taiwan twenty billion New Taiwan shall be determined by
Dollars (NT$220,000,000,000), [ Dollars the Board of Directors
divided into twenty two billion | (NT$220,000,000,000), is explicitly specified in
(22,000,000,000) shares at par | divided into twenty two Article 266 of the




value of ten New Taiwan
Dollars (NT$10.00) per share.
The shares are issued in
installments.

billion (22,000,000,000)
shares at par value of ten New
Taiwan Dollars (NT$10.00)
per share. The shares are
issued in installments

Company Act, so it is
not necessary to specify
“determined by the
Board of Directors” in
these Articles of

When the Company issues new_ | determined by the Board of Incorporations. The

shares, employees meeting Directors. relevant wording is

certain specific requirements, therefore removed.

of the subsidiaries are entitled 2. To conform to the

to subscribe new shares amendment to

reserved for subscription by paragraph 7 of the

emplovees in accordance with Article 267 of the

applicable laws. Company Act, it is
newly added that
employees of the
subsidiaries are entitled
to subscribe new shares
issued by the Company.

ARTICLE 8 ARTICLE 8

All share certificates of the All share certificates of the The Company’s shares are

Company shall indicate thereon | Company shall indicate issued in dematerialized

the name of the shareholder
thereof.

For the shares to be issued by
the Company, the Company
may be exempted from printing
any share certificate for the
share issued, while the
Company shall register the
igsued shares with a centralized

securities depositary enterprise

thereon the name of the
shareholder thereof, shall be
affixed with the signatures or
personal seals of three
Directors of the Company,
and shall be duly certified or
authenticated by the
competent authority or a
certifying institution
appointed by the competent
authority before issuance
thereof.

For the shares to be issued by
the Company, the Company
may be exempted from
printing any share certificate
for the share issued, while the
Company shall appoint a
centralized securities custody
enterprise to make recordation

form without printing share
certificates. The stipulation
about printing and
authentication of the share
certificates is therefore
deleted. Some wording in
the second paragraph is
revised according to the
Article 161-2 of the
Company Act.




and follow the regulations of
that enterprise.

of the issue of such shares.

ARTICLE 25

Meeting of the Board of
Directors shall be held once a
month in principle. In the
case of emergency, the meeting
of the Board of Directors may
be convened at any time.

The notice of the Board
meeting may be served in
writing by mail, E-mail or fax.
The procedure for meetings of
the Board of Directors shall be
governed by the relevant laws
and regulations, the Articles of
Incorporation of the Company,
and the rules otherwise adopted

ARTICLE 25

Meeting of the Board of
Directors shall be held once a
month. In the case of
emergency, the meeting

of the Board of Directors may
be convened at any time.

The procedure for meetings of
the Board of Directors shall
be governed by the relevant
laws and regulations, the
Articles of Incorporation of
the Company, and the rules
otherwise adopted by the
Board of Directors.

The notice of the Board

1. To make dates of the
board meeting more
flexible, the board
meeting is changed to
be held once a month in
principle.

2. The adoption of Rules
for Meetings of Board
of Directors specified at
the end of paragraph 1
is moved to paragraph
2, while the deadline for
board meeting notice is
specified in the Board
Meeting Principles.

by the Board of Directors. meeting may be served in 3. The second paragraph is
writing by mail, E-mail or fax. moved to paragraph 1.

ARTICLE 33 ARTICLE 33

These Articles of These Articles of The date of this amendment

Incorporation were Incorporation were is newly added.

promulgated on December 19,
2001. The first amendment
was made on June 12, 2002,
the second amendment was
made on November 11, 2002,
the third amendment was
made on June 6, 2003, the
fourth amendment was made
on June 11, 2004, the fifth
amendment was made on June
23, 2006, the sixth
amendment was made on June
13, 2008, the seventh
amendment was made on June
19, 2009, the eighth
amendment was made on June
23, 2010, the ninth
amendment was made on June

promulgated on December 19,
2001. The first amendment
was made on June 12, 2002,
the second amendment was
made on November 11, 2002,
the third amendment was
made on June 6, 2003, the
fourth amendment was made
on June 11, 2004, the fifth
amendment was made on June
23, 2006, the sixth
amendment was made on June
13, 2008, the seventh
amendment was made on June
19, 2009, the eighth
amendment was made on June
23, 2010, the ninth
amendment was made on June




28, 2011, the tenth
amendment was made on June
15, 2012, the eleventh
amendment was made on June
24, 2014, the twelfth
amendment was made on June
24,2016, and the thirteenth
amendment was made on June

21,2019.

28, 2011, the tenth
amendment was made on June
15, 2012, the eleventh
amendment was made on June
24,2014, and the twelfih
amendment was made on June
24, 2016.




Attachment 6

Mega Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
The Comparison Table of Amended Articles of Procedures for

Acquisition and Disposal of Assets

Amended Article Original Article Explanation
Chapter I General Principles Chapter I General Principles Not revised.
Article 1 (omitted) Article 1 (omitted) Not revised.

Article 2

The Company shall handle the
acquisition or disposal of assets in
compliance with these Procedures;
provided, where financial laws or
regulations provide otherwise, such
provisions shall govern.

Article 2

The Company shall handle the
acquisition or disposal of assets in
compliance with these Procedures;
provided, where another law or
regulation provides otherwise, such
provisions shall govern.

In accordance
with Article 2 of
the Regulations
Governing
Acquisition and
Disposal of
Assets, the laws
that shall be
preferentially
applied are
amended.

Article 3

The term "assets" as used in

these Procedures includes the

following:

1. Investments in stocks, government

bonds, corporate bonds, financial

bonds, securities representing
interest in a fund, depositary
receipts, call (put) warrants,
beneficial interest securities, and
asset-backed securities.

2. Real property (including land,
houses and buildings, investment
property, and construction
enterprise inventory) and
equipment.

. Memberships.

4, Patents, copyrights, trademarks,

franchise rights, and other

intangible assets.

5. Right-of-use assets.

6. Claims of financial institutions

(including receivables, bills

purchased and discounted, loans,

and overdue receivables).

(98]

Article 3

The term "assets" as used in
these Procedures includes the
following:

1. Investments in stocks, government
bonds, corporate bonds, financial
bonds, securities representing
interest in a fund, depositary
receipts, call (put) warrants,
beneficial interest securities, and
asset-backed securities.

2. Real property (including land,

houses and buildings, investment

property, rights to use land) and
equipment.

3. Memberships.

4., Patents, copyrights, trademarks,
franchise rights, and other
intangible assets.

5. Claims of financial institutions
(including receivables, bills
purchased and discounted, loans,

and overdue receivables).

In accordance
with Article

3 of the
Regulations
Governing
Acquisition and
Disposal of
Assets, the
right-of-use
assets are added
in subparagraph
5, and the
sequence
number of
subparagraphs 5
to 8 are adjusted.




Derivatives.

Assets acquired or disposed of in
connection with mergers,
demergers, acquisitions, or transfer
of shares in accordance with law.

9. Other major assets.

7.
8.

6. Derivatives.

7. Assets acquired or disposed of in
connection with mergers,
demergers, acquisitions, or transfer
of shares in accordance with law.

8. Other major assets.

Article 4
Terms used in these Procedures are

defined as follows: -

1. Derivatives: Forward contracts,
options contracts, futures contracts,
leverage contracts, or swap
contracts, whose value is derived

from a specified interest rate,
financial instrument price,

commodity price, foreign
exchange rate, index of prices or

rates, credit rating or credit index,
or other variable: or hybrid

contracts combining the above
contracts; or hybrid contracts or

structured products containing
embedded derivatives. The term
"forward contracts" does not
include insurance contracts,
performance contracts, after-sales
service contracts, long-term
leasing contracts, or long-term
purchase (sales) contracts.

2. Assets acquired or disposed through
mergers, demergers, acquisitions,
or transfer of shares in accordance
with law: Refers to assets acquired
or disposed through mergers,
demergers, or acquisitions
conducted under the Business
Mergers and Acquisitions Act,
Financial Holding Company Act,
Financial Institution Merger Act
and other acts, or to transfer of
shares from another company
through issuance of new shares of
its own as the consideration
therefor (hereinafter "transfer of
shares") under Article 156-3

Article 4
Terms used in these Procedures are

defined as follows:

1. Derivatives: Forward confracts,
options contracts, futures contracts,
leverage contracts, and swap
contracts, and compound contracts
combining the above products,
whose value is derived from assets,
interest rates, foreign exchange
rates, indexes or other interests. The
term "forward contracts" does not
include insurance contracts,
performance contracts, after-sales
service contracts, long-term leasing
contracts, or long-term purchase
(sales) agreements.

. Assets acquired or disposed through
mergers, demergers, acquisitions,
or transfer of shares in accordance
with law: Refers to assets acquired
or disposed through mergers,
demergers, or acquisitions
conducted under the Business
Mergers and Acquisitions Act,
Financial Holding Company Act,
Financial Institution Merger Act
and other acts, or to transfer of
shares from another company
through issuance of new shares of
its own as the consideration
therefor (hereinafter "transfer of
shares") under Article 156,

In accordance
with Article

4 of the
Regulations
Governing
Acquisition and
Disposal of
Assets, the
scope of
derivatives is
revised and the
definition of
securities
exchange and
over-the-counter
venue is newly
added.




of the Company Act.

3. Related party or subsidiary: As
defined in the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of
Financial Reports by Securities
Issuers.

4, Professional appraiser: Refers to a
real property appraiser or other
person duly authorized by law to
engage in the value appraisal of
real property or equipment.

5. Date of occurrence: Refers to the
date of contract signing, date of
payment, date of consignment
trade, date of transfer, dates of
boards of directors resolutions, or
other date that can confirm the
counterpart and monetary amount
of the transaction, whichever date
is earlier; provided, for investment
for which approval of the
competent authority is required, the
earlier of the above date or the date
of receipt of approval by the
competent authority shall apply.

6. Mainland China area investment:

Refers to investments in the

mainland China area approved by

the Ministry of Economic Affairs

Investment Commission or

conducted in accordance with the

provisions of the Regulations

Governing Permission for

Investment or Technical

Cooperation in the Mainland Area.

7. Securities exchange: "Domestic
securities exchange” refers to the
Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation; "foreign securities
exchange" refers to any organized
securities exchange market that is
regulated by the competent
securities authorities of the
jurisdiction where it is located.

8. Over-the-counter venue ("OTC
venue", "OTC"): "Domestic OTC

paragraph 8 of the Company Act.

3. Related party or subsidiary: As

defined in the Regulations

Governing the Preparation of

Financial Reports by Securities

Issuers.

Professional appraiser: Refers to a

real property appraiser or other

person duly authorized by law to
engage in the value appraisal of real
property or equipment.

5. Date of occurrence: Refers to the
date of contract signing, date of
payment, date of consignment
trade, date of transfer, dates of
boards of directors resolutions, or
other date that can confirm the
counterpart and monetary amount
of the transaction, whichever date
is earlier; provided, for investment
for which approval of the
competent authority is required, the
earlier of the above date or the date
of receipt of approval by the
competent authority shall apply.

6. Mainland China area investment:
Refers to investments in the
mainland China area approved by
the Ministry of Economic Affairs
Investment Commission or
conducted in accordance with the
provisions of the Regulations
Governing Permission for
Investment or Technical
Cooperation in the Mainland Area.

4.




venue" refers to a venue for OTC
trading provided by a securities
firm in accordance with the
Regulations Governing Securities
Trading on the Taipei Exchange;
"foreign OTC venue" refers to a
venue at a financial institution that
is regulated by the foreign
competent authority and that is
permitted to conduct securities
business.

Article 5

Professional appraisers and their
officers, certified public accounts,
attorneys, and securities underwriters
that provide public companies with
appraisal reports, certified public
accountant's opinions, attorney's
opinions, or underwriter's opinions
shall meet the following requirements:

. May not have previously received a
final and unappealable sentence to
imprisonment for 1 vear or longer
for a violation of the Act, the
Company Act, the Banking Act of
The Republic of China, the
Insurance Act, the Financial .
Holding Company Act, or the
Business Entity Accounting Act, or
for fraud, breach of trust,
embezzlement, forgery of
documents, or occupational crime,
However, this provision does not
apply if 3 years have already passed
since completion of service of the
sentence, since expiration of the
period of a suspended sentence, or
since a pardon was received,

. May not be a related party or de
facto related party of any party to
the transaction.

. If the company is required to obtain
appraisal reports from two or more
professional appraisers, the different

professional appraisers or appraisal

officers, certified public accounts,
attorneys, and securities underwriters
that provide public companies with
appraisal reports, certified public
accountant's opinions, attorney's
opinions, or underwriter's opinions
shall not be a related party of any
party to the transaction.

Article 5
Professional appraisers and their

In accordance
with Article 5 of
the Regulations
Governing
Acquisition and
Disposal of
Assets, the
passive
qualifications of
external experts
are added.




officers may not be related parties
or de facto related parties of each
other.

Article 6

In acquisition or disposal of
assets, the Company shall handle the
assessment and transaction in
compliance with the following
provisions:

1. Acquisition or disposal of real
property, equipment, other assets or
right-of-use assets thereof shall be
handled in compliance with the
Company’s “Guidelines for
Procurement, Leasing and Disposal
of Assets”.

2. Acquirement or disposal of

financial bonds and government

bonds shall be handled in
compliance with “Procedures for

Short-Term Funds Application”.

3. Acquisition or disposal of long-term

equity investments shall be handled

in compliance with “Financial

Holding Company Act” and other

applicable laws or regulations.

4. Derivatives transaction shall be

handled in compliance with the

Company’s “Procedures for

Derivatives Trading”.

4.

Article 6

In acquisition or disposal of
assets, the Company shall handle the
assessment and transaction in
compliance with the following
provisions:

1. Acquisition or disposal of real
property and equipment shall be
handled in compliance with the
Company’s “Guidelines for
Procurement, Leasing and Disposal
of Assets”.

2. Acquirement or disposal of
financial bonds and government
bonds shall be handled in
compliance with “Procedures for
Short-Term Funds Application™.

. Acquisition or disposal of long-term

equity investments shall be handled

in compliance with “Financial

Holding Company Act” and other

applicable laws or regulations.

Derivatives transaction shall be

handled in compliance with the

Company’s “Procedures for

Derivatives Trading™.

. Acquisition or disposal of other

asset shall be handled in
compliance with the Company’s
“Articles of Incorporation”,
authority policy and other
applicable regulations.

In accordance
with IFRS 16
“Lease”, the
right-of-use
assets is added
in subparagraph
1 and
subparagraph 5
is combined
with
subparagraph 1.

Chapter Il Disposition Procedures

Chapter II Disposition Procedures

Not revised.

Section I Establishment of
Disposition Procedures

Section I Establishment of
Disposition Procedures

Not revised,




Article 7

In acquiring or disposing of real
property, equipment, or right-of-use
assets thereof where the transaction
amount reaches 20 percent of the
company's paid-in capital or NT$300
million or more, The Company, unless
transacting with a domestic
government agency, engaging others
to build on its own land, engaging
others to build on rented land, or
acquiring or disposing of equipment or
right-of-use assets thereof held for
business use, shall obtain an appraisal
report prior to the date of occurrence
of the event from a professional
appraiser and shall further comply
with the following provisions:

1. Where due to special circumstances
it is necessary to give a limited
price, specified price, or special
price as a reference basis for the
transaction price, the transaction
shall be submitted for approval in
advance by the board of directors;
the same procedure shall also be
followed whenever there is any
subsequent change to the terms and
conditions of the transaction.

2. Where the transaction amount is
NT#$1 billion or more, appraisals
from two or more professional
appraisers shall be obtained.

3. Where any one of the following
circumstances applies with respect
to the professional appraiser's
appraisal results, unless all the
appraisal results for the assets to be
acquired are higher than the
transaction amount, or all the
appraisal results for the assets to be
disposed of are lower than the
transaction amount, a certified
public accountant shall be engaged
to perform the appraisal in

Article 7

In acquiring or disposing of real
property, equipment, where the
transaction amount reaches 20 percent
of the company's paid-in capital or
NT$300 million or more, The
Company, unless transacting with a
domestic government agency,
engaging others to build on its own
land, engaging others to build on
rented land, or acquiring or disposing
of equipment for business use, shall
obtain an appraisal report prior to the
date of occurrence of the event from a
professional appraiser and shall
further comply with the following
provisions:

1. Where due to special circumstances
it is necessary to give a limited
price, specified price, or special
price as a reference basis for the
transaction price, the transaction
shall be submitted for approval in
advance by the board of directors,
and the same procedure shall be
followed for any future changes to
the terms and conditions of the
transaction.

2. Where the transaction amount is
NT$1 billion or more, appraisals
from two or more professional
appraisers shall be obtained.

3. Where any one of the following
circumstances applies with respect
to the professional appraiser's
appraisal results, unless all the
appraisal results for the assets to be
acquired are higher than the
transaction amount, or all the
appraisal results for the assets to be
disposed of are lower than the
transaction amount, a certified
public accountant shall be engaged

to perform the appraisal in

. According to

Article 9 of
the
Regulations
Governing
Acquisition
and Disposal
of Assets, the
right-of-use
assets are
added.
Besides,
transactions
with
government
agency that
is exempted
from
requirement
of expert
opinions are
limited to
those
transactions
with domestic
government
agency.

. Some wording

is revised.




accordance with the provisions of

Statement of Auditing Standards

No. 20 published by the ROC

Accounting Research and

Development Foundation (ARDF)

and render a specific opinion

regarding the reason for the
discrepancy and the appropriateness
of the transaction price:

A. The discrepancy between the
appraisal result and the
transaction amount is 20 percent
or more of the transaction
amount.

. The discrepancy between the
appraisal results of two or more
professional appraisers is 10
percent or more of the
transaction amount.

. No more than 3 months may elapse
between the date of the appraisal
report issued by a professional
appraiser and the contract
execution date;

accordance with the provisions of

Statement of Auditing Standards

No. 20 published by the ROC

Accounting Research and

Development Foundation and

render a specific opinion regarding

the reason for the discrepancy and
the appropriateness of the
transaction price:

A. The discrepancy between the
appraisal result and the
transaction amount is 20 percent
or more of the transaction
amount.

B. The discrepancy between the
appraisal results of two or more
professional appraisers is 10
percent or more of the
transaction amount.

No more than 3 months may elapse

between the date of the appraisal

report issued by a professional
appraiser and the contract
execution date;

4,

Article 8 (omitted)

Article § (omitted)

Not revised.

Article 9

In acquiring or disposing of
intangible assets or right-of-use assets
thereof or memberships and the
transaction amount reaches 20 percent
or more of paid-in capital or NT$300
million or more, except in transactions
with a domestic government agency,
the Company shall engage a certified
public accountant prior to the date of
occurrence of the event to render an
opinion on the reasonableness of the
transaction price; the CPA shall
comply with the provisions of
Statement of Auditing Standards No.
20 published by the ARDEF.

Article 9

In acquiring or disposing of
memberships and intangible assets
where the transaction amount reaches
20 percent or more of the Company's
paid-in capital or NT$300 million or
more, the Company, unless transacting
with a government office,
the Company shall engage a certified
public accountant prior to the date of
occurrence of the event to render an
opinion on the reasonableness of the
transaction price; the CPA shall
comply with the provisions of
Statement of Auditing Standards No.
20 published by the ROC Accounting
Research and Development

Foundation.

It is revised in
accordance with
Article 11 of the
Regulations
Governing
Acquisition and
Disposal of
Assets.




Article 10 (omitted) Article 9-1 (omitted) The sequence of
the article is
revised,

Axticle 11 (omitted) Article 10 (omitted) The sequence of
the article is
revised.

Section II Related Party Section IT Related Party Not revised.

Transactions Transactions

Article 12 Article 11

‘When the Company engages in When the Company engages in | The sequence of

any acquisition or disposal of assets
from or to a related party, in addition
to ensuring that the necessary
resolutions are adopted and the
reasonableness of the transaction
terms is appraised, if the transaction
amount reaches 10 percent or more of
the company's total assets, the
Company shall also obtain an
appraisal report from a professional
appraiser or a CPA's opinion in
compliance with relevant stipulations.

The calculation of the transaction
amount referred to in the preceding
paragraph shall be made in accordance
with Article 10 herein.

‘When judging whether the
transaction counterparty is a related
party, in addition to legal formalities,
the substance of the relationship shall
also be considered.

any acquisition or disposal of assets
from or to a related party, in addition
to ensuring that the necessary
resolutions are adopted and the
reasonableness of the transaction
terms is appraised, if the transaction
amount reaches 10 percent or more of
the company's total assets, the
Company shall also obtain an
appraisal report from a professional
appraiser or a CPA's opinion in
compliance with relevant stipulations.

The calculation of the transaction
amount referred to in the preceding
paragraph shall be made in accordance
with Article 9-1 herein.

‘When judging whether the
transaction counterparty is a related
party, in addition to legal formalities,
the substance of the relationship shall
also be considered.

this article is
revised and the
number of
article 9-1 cited
in this article is
adjusted.

Article 12 (deleted)

Due to sequence
change of the
preceding
article, this
article with no
content is
deleted.

Article 13

When the Company intends to
acquire or dispose of real property or
right-of-use assets thereof from or to a
related party, or when it intends to
acquire or dispose of assets other than

Article 13

When the Company intends to
acquire or dispose of real property
from or to a related party, or when it
intends to acquire or dispose of assets
other than real property from or to a

1. In accordance
with Article
15 of the
Regulations
Goveming




real property or right-of-use assets

thereof from or to a related party and

the transaction amount reaches 20

percent or more of paid-in capital, 10

percent or more of the company's total

assets, or NT$300 million or more,
except in trading of domestic
government bonds or bonds under
repurchase and resale agreements, or
subscription or redemption of money
market funds i1ssued by domestic
securities investment trust enterprises,
the company may not proceed to enter

into a transaction contract or make a

payment until the following matters

have been approved by the board of
directors and recognized by the

SUpervisors:

1. The purpose, necessity and
anticipated benefit of the
acquisition or disposal of assets.

2. The reason for choosing the related
party as a transaction counterparty.

3. With respect to the acquisition of
real property or right-of-use assets
thereof from a related party,
information regarding appraisal of
the reasonableness of the
preliminary transaction terms in
accordance with Article 14 and
Article 15.

4. The date and price at which the
related party originally acquired the
real property, the original
transaction counterparty, and that
transaction counterparty's
relationship to the company and the
related party.

5. Monthly cash flow forecasts for
the year commencing from the
anticipated month of signing of
the contract, and evaluation of the
necessity of the transaction, and
reasonableness of the funds
utilization.

related party and the transaction
amount reaches 20 percent or more of
paid-in capital, 10 percent or more of
the Company's total assets, or NT$300
million or more, except in trading of
government bonds or bonds under
repurchase and resale agreements, or
subscription or redemption of
domestic money market funds which
are explicitly issued by domestic
securities investment trust

enterprises, the Company may not
proceed to enter into a transaction
contract or make a payment until the
following matters have been
approved by the board of directors
and recognized by the supervisors:

1. The purpose, necessity and
anticipated benefit of the
acquisition or disposal of assets.

2. The reason for choosing the related

party as a trading counterparty.

3. With respect to the acquisition of

real property from a related party,

information regarding appraisal of
the reasonableness of the
preliminary transaction terms in
accordance with Article 14 and

Article 15.

4. The date and price at which the
related party originally acquired the
real property, the original
transaction counterparty, and that
transaction counterparty's
relationship to the Company and the
related party.

5. Monthly cash flow forecasts for
the year commencing from the

the contract, and evaluation of the
necessity of the transaction, and
reasonableness of the funds

utilization.

anticipated month of signing of 2.

Acquisition
and Disposal
of Assets,
trading of
government
bonds that is
exempted
from approval
by the board
of directors
are limited to
trading of
domestic
government
bonds.
Besides,
right- of-use
assets are
added in this
article. The
requirements
on the
approval
process for
acquisition or
disposal of
business-use
equipment and
right-of-use
assets or real
estate
right-of-use
assets between
the Company
and its
directly or
indirectly
100% held
subsidiary are
relaxed.
Some
wording in
subparagraph
6 of paragraph
1 is revised.




An appraisal report from a
professional appraiser or a CPA's
opinion obtained in compliance
with the preceding article.
Restrictive covenants and other
important stipulations associated
with the transaction.

The calculation of the transaction

amounts referred to in the preceding

paragraph shall be made in accordance
lwith Article 25, paragraph 2 hérein,
and "within the preceding year" as
used herein refers to the year
preceding the date of occurrence of
the current transaction. Items that have
been approved by the board of
directors and recognized by the
supervisors need not be counted
toward the transaction amount.

With respect to the types of
transactions listed below, when to be
conducted between the Company and
its subsidiaries, or between its
subsidiaries in which it directly or
indirectly holds 100 percent of the
issued shares or authorized capital, the
company's board of directors may
delegate the board chairman to decide
such matters when the transaction is
within a certain amount and have the
decisions subsequently submitted to
and ratified by the next board of
directors meeting;:

1. Acquisition or disposal of
equipment or right-of-use assets
thereof held for business use.

2. Acquisition or disposal of real

property right-of-use agsets held for

business use.

When a matter is submitted for
discussion by the board of directors
pursuant to paragraph 1, the board of
directors shall take into full
consideration each independent
director's opinions. If an independent
director objects to or expresses

6. An appraisal report from a
professional appraiser or 2 CPA's
opinion obtained in compliance
with Axticle 11.

7. Restrictive covenants and other
important stipulations associated
with the transaction.

The calculation of the transaction
amounts referred to in the preceding
paragraph shall be made in accordance
with Article 25, paragraph 2 herein,
and "within the preceding year" as
used herein refers to the year
preceding the date of occurrence of
the current transaction. Items that have
been approved by the audit
committee and board of directors
need not be counted toward the
transaction amount.

With respect to the acquisition or
disposal of business-use equipment
between the Company and its
subsidiaries, the Company's board of
directors may delegate the board
chairman to decide such matters when
the transaction is within a certain
amount and have the decisions
subsequently submitted to and ratified
by the next board of directors meeting.

‘When a matter is submitted for
discussion by the board of directors
pursuant to paragraph 1, the board of
directors shall take into full
consideration each independent
director's opinions. If an independent

director objects to or expresses




reservations about any matter, it shall
be recorded in the minutes of the
board of directors meeting.

When a matter is submitted for
discussion by the audit committee
pursuant to paragraph 1, it shall be
approved by more than half of all
audit committee members and
submitted to the board of directors for
resolution, Article 31, paragraph 3 and
paragraph 4 shall apply mutatis
mutandis to the audit committee.

reservations about any matter, it shall
be recorded in the minutes of the
board of directors meeting,

When a matter is submitted for
discussion by the audit committee
pursuant to paragraph 1, it shall be
approved by more than half of all
audit committee members and
submitted to the board of directors for
resolution, Article 31, paragraph 3 and
paragraph 4 shall apply mutatis
mutandis to the audit committee,

Article 14

The Company that acquires real
property or right-of-use assets thereof
from a related party shall evaluate the
reasonableness of the transaction costs
by the following means:

1. Based upon the related party's
transaction price plus necessary
interest on funding and the costs to
be duly borne by the buyer.
"Necessary interest on funding" is
imputed as the weighted average
interest rate on borrowing in the
year the company purchases the
property; provided, it may not be
higher than the maximum
non-financial industry lending rate
announced by the Ministry of
Finance.

. Total loan value appraisal from a
financial institution where the
related party has previously created
a mortgage on the property as
security for a loan; provided, the
actual cumulative amount loaned by
the financial institution shall have
been 70 percent or more of the
financial institution's appraised loan
value of the property and the period
of the loan shall have been 1 year or
more, However, this shall not apply
where the financial institution is a
related party of one of the

Article 14

The Company that acquires real
property from a related party shall
evaluate the reasonableness of the
transaction costs by the following
means:
1. Based upon the related party's
transaction price plus necessary
interest on funding and the costs to
be duly borne by the buyer.
"Necessary interest on funding" is
imputed as the weighted average
interest rate on borrowing in the
year the company purchases the
property; provided, it may not be
higher than the maximum
non-financial industry lending rate
announced by the Ministry of
Finance.
Total loan value appraisal from a
financial institution where the
related party has previously created
a mortgage on the property as
security for a loan; provided, the
actual cumulative amount loaned by
the financial institution shall have
been 70 percent or more of the
financial institution's appraised loan
value of the property and the period
of the loan shall have been 1 year or
more. However, this shall not apply
where the financial institution is a
related party of one of the

2.

transaction counterparties.

transaction counterparties.

1.

2.

In accordance
with Article
16 of the
Regulations
Governing
Acquisition
and Disposal
of Assets, real
property
right-of-use
assets are
added in this
article, The
requirements
on assessment
of transaction
costs for
acquisition or
disposal of
business-use
right-of-use
assets of real
property
between the
Company and
its directly or
indirectly
wholly-owned
subsidiary are
exempted.
Some wording
is revised.




Where land and structures
thereupon are combined as a single
property purchased or leased in one
transaction, the transaction costs for
the land and the structures may be
separately appraised in accordance
with either of the means listed in the
preceding paragraph.

The Company that acquires real
propetty or right-of-use assets thereof
from a related party and appraises the
cost of the real property or
right-of-use assets thereof in
accordance with the preceding two
paragraphs shall also engage a CPA to
check the appraisal and render a
specific opinion.

Where The Company acquires
real property or right-of-use assets
thereof from a related party and
one of the following circumstances
exists, the acquisition shall be
conducted in accordance with the
preceding article, and the preceding
three paragraphs do not apply:

1. The related party acquired the real
property or right-of-use assets
thereof through inheritance or as a
gift.

2. More than 5 years will have elapsed
from the time the related party
signed the contract to obtain the
real property or right-of-use assets
thereof to the signing date for the
current transaction.

3. The real property is acquired
through signing of a joint
development contract with the
related party, or through engaging a
related party to build real property,
either on the company's own land
or on rented land.

4. The real property right-of-use assets

for business use are acquired by the

Company with its parent or
subsidiaries, or by its subsidiaries

Where land and structures
thereupon are combined as a single
property purchased in one
transaction, the transaction costs for
the land and the structures may be
separately appraised in accordance
with either of the means listed in the
preceding paragraph.

The Company that acquires real
property from a related party and
appraises the cost of the real property
in accordance with paragraphs 1 and 2
shall also engage a CPA to check the
appraisal and render a specific
opinion.

Where The Company acquires
real property from a related party and
one of the following circumstances
exists, the acquisition shall be
conducted in accordance with the
article 13, and the preceding three
paragraphs do not apply:

1. The related party acquired the real
property through inheritance or as a
gift.

2. More than 5 years will have elapsed

from the time the related party

signed the contract to obtain the real
property to the signing date for the
current transaction.

. The real property is acquired
through signing of a joint
development contract with the
related party, or through engaging a
related party to build real property,
either on the company's own land or
on rented land.




in which it directly or indirectly

holds 100 percent of the issued

shares or authorized capital.

Article 15
When the results of The

Company's appraisal conducted in

accordance with paragraph 1 and

paragraph 2 of the preceding Article
are uniformly lower than the
transaction price, the matter shall be

handled in compliance with Article 18.

However, where the following

circumstances exist, objective

evidence has been submitted and
specific opinions on reasonableness

have been obtained from a

professional real property appraiser

and a CPA have been obtained, this
restriction shall not apply:

1. Where the related party acquired
undeveloped land or leased land
for development, it may submit
proof of compliance with one of
the following conditions:

A. Where undeveloped land is
appraised in accordance with the
means in the preceding Article,
and structures according to the
related party's construction cost
plus reasonable construction
profit are valued in excess of the
actual transaction price. The
"Reasonable construction profit"
shall be deemed the average
gross operating profit margin of
the related party's construction
division over the most recent 3
years or the gross profit margin
for the construction industry for
the most recent period as
announced by the Ministry of
Finance, whichever is lower.
Completed transactions by
unrelated parties within the
preceding year involving other
floors of the same property or

Article 15
When the results of the

Company's appraisal conducted in
accordance with paragraph 1 and
paragraph 2 of the preceding Article
are uniformly lower than the
transaction price, the matter shall be
handled in compliance with Article 17,
However, where the following
circumstances exist, objective
evidence has been submitted and
specific opinions on reasonableness
have been obtained from a
professional real property appraiser
and a CPA have been obtained, this
restriction shall not apply:

1. Where the related party acquired
undeveloped land or leased land
for development, it may submit
proof of compliance with one of
the following conditions:

A. Where undeveloped land is
appraised in accordance with the
means in the preceding Article,
and structures according to the
related party's construction cost
plus reasonable construction
profit are valued in excess of the
actual transaction price. The
"Reasonable construction profit"
shall be deemed the average gross
operating profit margin of the
related party's construction
division over the most recent 3
years or the gross profit margin
for the construction industry for
the most recent period as
announced by the Ministry of
Finance, whichever is lower.

B. Completed transactions by

unrelated parties within the
preceding year involving other
floors of the same property or

In accordance
with Article 17
of the
Regulations
Governing
Acquisition and
Disposal of
Assets, item C in
subparagraph 1
is combined
with item B and
leasing is added
in item B.




neighboring or closely valued
parcels of land, where the land
area and transaction terms are
similar after calculation of
reasonable price discrepancies
in floor or area land prices in
accordance with standard
property market sale or leasing
practices.

Where the Company acquiring real
property, or obtaining real propetty

right-of-use assets through leasing,
from a related party provides
evidence that the terms of the
transaction are similar to the terms
of completed transactions
involving neighboring or closely
valued parcels of land of a similar
size by unrelated parties within the
preceding year.

Completed transactions
involving neighboring or closely
valued parcels of land in the preceding
paragraph in principle refers to parcels
on the same or an adjacent block and
within a distance of no more than 500
meters or parcels close in publicly
announced current value; transactions
involving similarly sized parcels in
principle refers to transactions
completed by unrelated parties for
parcels with a land area of no less
than 50 percent of the property in the
planned transaction; within the
preceding year refers to the year
preceding the date of occurrence of

neighboring or closely valued
parcels of land, where the land
area and transaction terms are
similar after calculation of
reasonable price discrepancies
in floor or area land prices in
accordance with standard
property market practices.

C._Completed leasing transactions by
unrelated parties for other floors of
the same property from within the
preceding vear, where the
transaction terms are similar after
calculation of reasonable price
discrepancies among floors in
accordance with standard property
leasing market practices.

2. Where the Company acquiring real

property from a related party

provides evidence that the terms of
the transaction are similar to the
terms of transactions completed for
the acquisition of neighboring or

closely valued parcels of land of a

similar size by unrelated parties

within the preceding year.

Completed transactions
involving neighboring or closely
valued parcels of land in the preceding
paragraph in principle refers to parcels
on the same or an adjacent block and
within a distance of no more than 500
meters or parcels close in publicly
announced current value; transactions
involving similarly sized parcels in
principle refers to transactions.
completed by unrelated parties for
parcels with a land area of no less
than 50 percent of the property in the
planned transaction; within the
preceding year refers to the year

preceding the date of occurrence of




the acquisition of the real property or

obtainment of the right-of-use assets

thereof.

the acquisition of the real property.

Article 16

Where the Company acquires
real property or right-of-use assets
thereof from a related party and the
results of appraisals conducted in
accordance with the preceding two
articles are uniformly lower than the
transaction price, the following steps
shall be taken:

1. A special reserve shall be set aside
in accordance with Article 41,
paragraph 1 of the Securities
Exchange Act against the difference
between the real property
transaction price and the appraised
cost, and may not be distributed or
used for capital increase or issuance
of bonus shares. Where the
Company uses the equity method to
account for its investment in
another company, then the special
reserve called for under Article 41,
paragraph of the Act shall be set
aside pro rata in a proportton
consistent with the share of public
company's equity stake in the other
company.

2. Independent directors of the audit
committee shall comply with Article
218 of the Company Act.

3. Actions taken pursuant to the
preceding two subparagraphs shall
be reported to a shareholders
meeting, and the details of the
transaction shall be disclosed in the
annual report and any investment
prospectus.

If the Company has set aside

a special reserve under the preceding

paragraph, it may not utilize the

special reserve until it has recognized

a loss on decline in market value of

Article 16
Where The Company acquires [1.
real property from a related party and
the results of appraisals conducted in
accordance with Article 14 and Article

transaction price, the following steps
shall be taken:

3. Actions taken pursuant to

a special reserve under the preceding
paragraph, it may not utilize the
special reserve until it has recognized
a loss on decline in market value of

15 are uniformly lower than the

1. A special reserve shall be set aside
in accordance with Article 41,
paragraph 1 of the Securities
Exchange Act against the difference
between the real property

transaction price and the appraised [,

cost, and may not be distributed or
used for capital increase or issuance
of bonus shares. Where the
Company uses the equity method to
account for its investment in
another company, then the special
reserve called for under Article 41,
paragraph of the Act shall be set
aside pro rata in a proportion
consistent with the share of public
company's equity stake in the other
company.

2. Members of the audit committee
shall comply with Article 218 of the
Company Act.

subparagraph 1 and subparagraph 2
shall be reported to a shareholders
meeting, and the details of the
transaction shall be disclosed in the
annual report and any investment
prospectus.

If the Company has set aside

In accordance
with Article
18 of the
Regulations
Governing
Acquisition
and Disposal
of Assets,
right-of-use
assets of real
property are
added in this
article.

Some wording
is revised.




the assets it purchased or Jeased at a
premium, or they have been disposed
of, or the leasing contract has been
terminated, or adequate compensation
has been made, or the status quo ante
has been restored, or there is other
evidence confirming that there was
nothing unreasonable about the
transaction, and the FSC has given its
consent.

When the Company obtains real
property or right-of-use assets thereof
from a related party, it shall also
comply with the preceding two
paragraphs if there is other evidence
indicating that the acquisition was not
an arm’s length transaction.

the assets it purchased at a

premium, or they have been disposed
of, or adequate compensation has been
made, or the status quo ante has been
restored, or there is other evidence
confirming that there was nothing
unreasonable about the transaction,
and the FSC has given its consent.

When the Company obtains real
property from a related party, it shall
also comply with the preceding two
paragraphs if there is other evidence
indicating that the acquisition was not
an arm’s length transaction.

meeting for reference in deciding
whether to approve the merger,
demerger, or acquisition. Provided,
where a provision of another act
exempts a company from convening a
shareholders meeting to approve the
merger, demerger, or acquisition, this
restriction shall not apply.

Where the shareholders meeting
of any one of the companies

meeting for reference in deciding
whether to approve the merger,
demerger, or acquisition. Provided,
where a provision of another act
exempts a company from convening a
shareholders meeting to approve the
merger, demerger, or acquisition, this
restriction shall not apply.

Where the shareholders meeting
fails to convene or pass a resolution

Section IIT Mergers and Section IIT Mergers and Not revised.
Consolidations, Splits, Consolidations, Splits, '
Acquisitions, and Acquisitions, and
Assignment of Shares Assignment of Shares

Article 17 (omitted) Article 17 (omitted) Not revised.

Axrticle 18 Article 18

‘When participating in a merger, When participating in a merger, |In accordance
demerger, acquisition, or transfer of  |demerger, acquisition, or transfer of | with paragraph 2
shares, the Company shall prepare a  [shares, the Company shall prepare a  |of Article 24 of
public report to shareholders detailing [public report to shareholders detailing |the Regulations
important contractual content and important contractual content and Governing
matters relevant to the merger, matters relevant to the merger, Acquisition and
|demerger, or acquisition prior to the  |demerger, or acquisition prior to the | Disposal of
shareholders meeting and include it |shareholders meeting and include it | Assets, the
along with the expert opinion referred |along with the expert opinion referred |applicable scope

to in paragraph 1 of the preceding to in paragraph 1 of the preceding of paragraph 2

Article when sending shareholders Article when sending shareholders of this article is

notification of the shareholders notification of the shareholders amended.




participating in a merger, demerger, or

acquisition fails to convene or pass a
resolution due to lack of a quorum,
insufficient votes, or other legal
restriction, or the proposal is rejected
by the shareholders meeting, The
Company shall immediately publicly
explain the reason, the follow-up
measures, and the preliminary date of
the next shareholders meeting.

due to lack of a quorum, insufficient
votes, or other legal restriction, or the
proposal is rejected by the
shareholders meeting, The Company
shall immediately publicly explain the
reason, the follow-up measures, and
the preliminary date of the next
shareholders meeting.

Article 19
When participating in a2 merger,
demerger, or acquisition, the Company
shall convene a board of directors
meeting and shareholders meeting on
the day of the transaction to resolve
matters relevant to the merger,
demerger, or acquisition, unless
another act provides otherwise or the
FSC is notified in advance of
extraordinary circumstances and
grants consent.
When participating in a transfer
of shares, the Company shall call a
board of directors meeting on the day
of the transaction, unless another act
provides otherwise or the FSC is
notified in advance of extraordinary
circumstances and grants consent.
When participating in a merger,
demerger, acquisition, or transfer of
another company's shares, the
Company shall prepare a full written
record of the following information
and retain it for 5 years for reference:
1. Basic identification data for
personnel: Including the
occupational titles, names, and
national ID numbers (or passport
numbers in the case of foreign
nationals) of all persons involved
in the planning or implementation
of any merger, demerger,
acquisition, or transfer of another

Article 19
When participating in a merger,
demerger, or acquisition, the Company
shall convene a board of directors
meeting and shareholders meeting on
the day of the transaction to resolve
matters relevant to the merger,
demerger, or acquisition, unless
another act provides otherwise or the
FSC is notified in advance of
extraordinary circumstances and
grants consent.
When participating in a transfer
of shares, the Company shall call a
board of directors meeting on the day
of the transaction, unless another act
provides otherwise or the FSC is
notified in advance of extraordinary
circumstances and grants consent.
When participating in a merger,
demerger, acquisition, or transfer of
another company's shares, the
Company shall prepare a full written
record of the following information
and retain it for 5 years for reference:
1. Basic 1dentification data for
personnel: Including the
occupational titles, names, and
national ID numbers (or passport
numbers in the case of foreign
nationals) of all persons involved
in the planning or implementation
of any merger, demerger,

acquisition, or transfer of another

Some wording
in paragraph 5
is revised.




company's shares prior to
disclosure of the information.
Dates of material events: Including
the signing of any letter of intent or
memorandum of understanding,
the hiring of a financial or legal
advisor, the execution of a contract,
and the convening of a board of
directors meeting.

Important documents and minutes:
Including merger, demerger,
acquisition, and share transfer
plans, any letter of intent or
memorandum of understanding,
material contracts, and minutes of
board of directors meetings.

When participating in a merger,
demerger, acquisition, or transfer of
another company's shares, a company
that is listed on an exchange or has its
shares traded on an OTC market shall,
within 2 days counting inclusively
from the date of passage of a
resolution by the board of directors,
report (in the prescribed format and
via the Internet-based information
system) the information set out in
subparagraphs 1 and 2 of the
preceding paragraph to the FSC for
recordation.

Where any of the companies
participating in a merger, demerger,
acquisition, or transfer of another
company's shares is neither listed on
an exchange nor has its shares traded
on an OTC market, the Company
shall sign an agreement with such
company whereby the latter is
required to abide by the provisions
of the preceding two paragraphs.

company's shares prior to
disclosure of the information.
Dates of material events: Including
the signing of any letter of intent or
memorandum of understanding,
the hiring of a financial or legal
advisor, the execution of a contract,
and the convening of a board of
directors meeting.

Important documents and minutes:
Including merger, demerger,
acquisition, and share transfer
plans, any letter of intent or
memorandum of understanding,
material contracts, and minutes of
board of directors meetings.

When participating in a merger,
demerger, acquisition, or transfer of
another company's shares, a company
that is listed on an exchange or has its
shares traded on an OTC market shall,
within 2 days counting inclusively
from the date of passage of a
resolution by the board of directors,
report (in the prescribed format and
via the Internet-based information
system) the information set out in
subparagraphs 1 and 2 of the
preceding paragraph to the FSC for
recordation.

Where any of the companies
participating in a merger, demerger,
acquisition, or transfer of another
company's shares is neither listed on
an exchange nor has its shares traded
on an OTC market, the Company
shall sign an agreement with such
company whereby the latter is
required to abide by the provisions
of the paragraphs 3 and 4.

2.

participating in a merger, demerger,

participating in a merger, demerger,

Article 20~Article 23 (omitted) Article 20~Article 23 (omitted) Not revised.
Article 24 Axticle 24
Where any of the companies Where any of the companies Not revised.




acquisition, or transfer of shares is not
a public company, the Company

shall sign an agreement with the
non-public company whereby the
latter is required to abide by the
provisions of Article 19, Article 20,
and the preceding article.

acquisition, or transfer of shares is not
a public company, the Company

shall sign an agreement with the
non-public company whereby the

[|latter is required to abide by the

provisions of Article 19, Article 20,
and Article 23,

or disposing of assets shall publicly

announce and report the relevant

information on the FSC's designated
website in the appropriate format as

prescribed by regulations within 2

days counting inclusively from the

date of occurrence of the event:

1. Acquisition or disposal of real
property or right-of-use assets
thereof from or to a related party,
or acquisition or disposal of assets
other than real property or_
right-of-use assets thereof from or
to a related party where the
transaction amount reaches 20
percent or more of paid-in capital,
10 percent or more of the
company's total assets, or NT$300
million or more; provided, this
shall not apply to trading of
domestic government bonds or
bonds under repurchase and resale
agreements, or subscription or
redemption of money market funds
issued by domestic securities
investment trust enterprises.

2. Merger, demerger, acquisition, or

transfer of shares.

3. Where equipment or right-of-use

assets thereof for business use are

acquired or disposed of, and
furthermore the transaction

circumstances, the Company acquiring

circumstances, the Company acquiring
or disposing of assets shall publicly
announce and report the relevant
information on the FSC's designated
website in the appropriate format as
prescribed by regulations within 2
days counting inclusively from the
date of occurrence of the event:
1. Acquisition or disposal of real
property from or to a related
party, or acquisition or
disposal of assets other than
real property from or to a
. where the transaction related
party amount reaches 20 percent or
more of paid-in capital, 10 percent
or more of the company's
total assets, or NT$300 million or
more; provided, this shall not apply
to trading of domestic government
bonds or bonds under repurchase
and resale agreements, or
subscription or redemption of
money market funds issued by
domestic securities investment
trust enterprises.

2. Merger, demerger, accjuisition, or
transfer of shares.

3. Where equipment for business
use are acquired or disposed of,
and furthermore the transaction
counterparty is not a related party,

Chapter II1 Public Disclosure of Chapter ITI Public Disclosure of Not revised.
Information Information
Article 25 Article 25
Under any of the following Under any of the following 1.In accordance

with Article

31 of the
Regulations
Governing
Acquisition
and Disposal
of Assets,
right-use-
assets are
added in this
article.
Trading of
government
bonds,
exempted
from public
announce-
ment, are
limited to
trading of
domestic
government
bonds. It is
clearly defined
that the
requirement in
subparagraph
4 of paragraph
1 is applicable
to transaction
with
non-related
parties.




4,

counterparty is not a related party,

and the transaction amount reaches

NT$1 billion or more.

‘Where land is acquired under an
arrangement on engaging others to
build on the company's own land,
engaging others to build on rented
land, joint construction and
allocation of housing units, joint
construction and allocation of
ownership percentages, or joint
construction and separate sale, and
furthermore the transaction
counterparty is not a related party,
and the amount the company
expects to invest in the transaction
reaches NT$500 million or more.
Where an asset transaction other
than any of those referred to in the
preceding six subparagraphs, a
disposal of receivables by a
financial institution, or an
investment in the mainland China
area reaches 20 percent or more of
paid-in capital or NT$300 million;
provided, this shall not apply to the
following circumstances:

A. Trading of domestic government
bonds.

B. Where securities trading on
securities exchanges or OTC
markets, or subscription of
ordinary corporate bonds or
general bank debentures without
equity characteristics (excluding
subordinated debt) that are
offered and issued in the primary

market, or subscription or
redemption of securities
investment trust funds or futures
trust funds.

4,

5.

and the transaction amount reaches
NT$1 billion or more.

‘Where land is acquired under an
arrangement on engaging others to
build on the company's own land,
engaging others to build on rented
land, joint construction and
allocation of housing units, joint
construction and allocation of
ownership percentages, or joint
construction and separate sale,
and the amount the company
expects to invest in the transaction
reaches NT$500 million or more.

Where an asset transaction other
than any of those referred to in the
preceding six subparagraphs, a
disposal of receivables by a
financial institution, or an
investment in the mainland China
area reaches 20 percent or more of
paid-in capital or NT$300 million;
provided, this shall not apply to the
following circumstances:

A. Trading of domestic government
bonds.

B. Securities trading by investment
professionals on foreign or
domestic securities exchanges or
over-the-counter markets, or
subscription by investment
professionals of ordinary
corporate bonds or of general
bank debentures without equity
characteristics that are offered
and issued in the domestic
primary market.

2. The Company

is an
investment
professional
as defined in
Article 4

of the
Regulations
Governing
Acquisition
and Disposal
of Assets, so
the wording
in item B

of sub-
paragraph 5 of
paragraph 1 is
revised.
Besides,
subscription
of
subordinated
debt is not .
exempted
from public
announcement,
while
subscription
or redemption
of securities
investment
trust funds or
futures trust
funds is
exempted
from public
announcement,




C. Trading of bonds under
repurchase and resale
agreements, or subscription or
redemption of money market
funds issued by domestic
securities investment trust
enterprises.

The amount of transactions
|above shall be calculated as follows:
1. The amount of any individual

transaction.

2. The cumulative transaction amount
of acquisitions and disposals of the
same type of underlying asset with
the same transaction counterparty
within the preceding year.

. The cumlative transaction amount
of acquisitions and disposals
(cumulative acquisitions and
disposals, respectively) of real
property or right-of-use assets
thereof within the same
development project within the
preceding year.

4, The cumulative transaction amount

of acquisitions and disposals

(cumulative acquisitions and

disposals, respectively) of the same

security within the preceding year.
"Within the preceding year" as
used in the preceding paragraph refers
to the year preceding the date of
occurrence of the current transaction.

Items duly announced in accordance

with these Procedures need not be

counted toward the transaction
amount.

When The Company at the time
of public announcement makes an
error or omission in an item required
by regulations to be publicly
announced and so is required to
correct it, all the items shall be again

C. Trading of bonds under
repurchase and resale
agreements, or subscription or
redemption of money market
funds issued by domestic
securities investment trust
enterprises.

The amount of transactions
above shall be calculated as follows:
1. The amount of any individual
transaction.

The cumulative transaction amount

of acquisitions and disposals of the

same type of underlying asset with
the same transaction counterparty
within the preceding year.

. The cumulative transaction amount
of acquisitions and disposals
(cumulative acquisitions and
disposals, respectively) of real
property within the same
development project within the
preceding year.

2.

. The cumulative transaction amount
of acquisitions and disposals
(cumulative acquisitions and
disposals, respectively) of the same

security within the preceding year.
"Within the preceding year" as
used in the preceding paragraph refers
to the year preceding the date of
occurrence of the current transaction.

Items duly announced in accordance

with these Procedures need not be

counted toward the transaction
amount.

When The Company at the time
of public announcement makes an
error or omission in an item required
by regulations to be publicly
announced and so is required to
correct it, all the items shall be again




publicly announced and reported in
their entirety within two days
counting inclusively from the date of
knowing of such error or omission.
When acquiring or disposing of
assets, the Company shall keep all
relevant contracts, meeting minutes,
log books, appraisal reports and CPA,
attorney, and securities underwriter
opinions at the company, where they
shall be retained for 5 years except
where another act provides otherwise.

publicly announced and reported in
their entirety within two days
counting inclusively from the date of
knowing of such error or omission.
When acquiring or disposing of
assets, the Company shall keep all
relevant contracts, meeting minutes,
log books, appraisal reports and CPA,
attorney, and securities underwriter
opinions at the company, where they
shall be retained for 5 years except
where another act provides otherwise.

Axrticle 26 (omitted)

Article 26 (omitted)

Not revised.

Chapter IV Additional Provisions

Chapter IV Additional Provisions

Not revised.

Article 27

Information required to be
publicly announced and reported in
accordance with the provisions of
the preceding Chapter on
acquisitions and disposals of assets by
the Company's subsidiary that is not
itself a public company in Taiwan
shall be reported by the Company.

The paid-in capital or total

assets of the Company shall be the
standard applicable to a subsidiary
referred to in the preceding paragraph

in determining whether, relative to
paid-in capital or total assets, it
reaches a threshold requiring public

announcement and regulatory filing

under Article 25, paragraph 1.

Article 27

Information required to be
publicly announced and reported in
accordance with the regulations of
Financial Supervisory Commission on
acquisitions and disposals of assets by
the Company’s subsidiary that is not
itself a public company in Taiwan
shall be reported by the Company.

The paid-in capital or total
assets of the Company shall be the
standard for determining whether or
not a subsidiary referred to in the
preceding paragraph is subject to
Article 25, paragraph 1 requiring a
public announcement and regulatory
filing in the event the type of
transaction specified therein reaches
20 percent of paid-in capital or 10
percent of the total assets.

This article is
revised in
accordance with
Article 34 of the
Regulations
Governing
Acquisition and |-
Disposal of
Assets.

Article 28~Article 32 (omitted)

Article 28~Article 32 (omitted)

Not revised.




